
FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC 
UNIVERSITY 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

City of Lakeland Commission Chamber 
228 South Massachusetts Avenue 

Lakeland, Florida 33801 
September 5, 2012 

1:00 p.m.  
 
 

1.   Call to Order  Chair Robert Gidel 
 
 
 
2.   Approval of Meeting Minutes Chair Gidel   
 
 
 
3. Discussion, Board Authority   Ms. Vikki Shirley,   
     General Counsel,    
     Board of Governors     
 
 
4. Transition Committee Report: 
 
  A.  Transition Discussion:  Property, Liabilities, Chair Gidel 
       Construction, Staffing, Florida Industrial           Mr. Tim Jones, 

      and Phosphate Research Institute (FIPR)  Chief Financial Officer  
  Board of Governors 
 
 

  B.  Discussion, Shared Services Agreement Trustee Don Wilson 
        Ms. Shirley   
      
  
 

1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

2



  C.  Leases Held by the University of South Florida  Ms. Shirley  
 
 
  D.  Construction Update  Mr. Pete Karamitsanis 
     President & Director,    
     Lighthouse Advisors, Inc. 
 
 
  E.  Contract with Lighthouse Advisors, Inc. Mr. Chris Kinsley 
     Director, Finance & Facilities,    
     Board of Governors 
 
 
5. Delegation of Authority to Transition Committee  Ms. Shirley  
 
 
 
6. Discussion, Committee Work Chair Gidel 
 
 
 
7. Concluding Remarks and Adjournment  Chair Gidel 
 
 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

4



 FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 September 5, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes of Meetings held August 1, 2012, and August 13, 

2012 
 
 
 PROPOSED BOARD ACTION   
 
Approval of Minutes of the meeting held on August 1, 2012, in Orlando; and Minutes of 
the meeting held on August 13, 2012, via telephone conference call. 

 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Not applicable 
 
 
 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
Trustees will review and approve the Minutes of the meeting held on August 1, 2012, in 
Orlando; and the Minutes of the meeting held on August 13, 2012, via telephone 
conference call. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation Included: Minutes:  August 1, 2012; August 13, 2012 
 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Chair Robert Gidel  

5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

6



 

 
 

INDEX OF MINUTES 
FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
KAITAK/MIRABEL ROOM 

HYATT REGENCY INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 

AUGUST 1, 2012 
 

ITEM                   PAGE 
 
1. Call to Order ......................................................................................................................1 
2. Recognition, Members of Board of Trustees .................................................................1 
3. Consideration, Election of Chair and Vice Chair .........................................................1 
4. Adjournment and Scheduling of Next Meeting ...........................................................2 

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

8



 

 
 

MINUTES 
FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
KAITAK/MIRABEL ROOM 

HYATT REGENCY INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 

AUGUST 1, 2012 
 
1. Call to Order  

 
Mori Hosseini, Vice Chair of the Board of Governors and Chair of the Board of 

Governors Select Committee on Florida Polytechnic University, convened the inaugural 
meeting of the Board of Trustees, Florida Polytechnic University at 11:32 a.m., with the 
following members present:  Mark Bostick, Dr. Sandra Featherman, Robert Gidel, Dr. 
Richard “Dick” Hallion, Scott Hammack, Kevin Hyman, Frank Martin, and Donald 
Wilson.   

 
2.   Recognition, Members of Board of Trustees 

 
Mr. Hosseini thanked the Trustees for participating in the morning orientation 

session.  During the orientation, each Trustee provided information about background 
experiences and goals for the new university.  Through these introductions, the 
Trustees were able to get to know one another.   
 
3. Consideration, Election of Chair and Vice Chair 
 

Mr. Martin moved that the Trustees elect Robert Gidel as Chair and Mark Bostick 
as Vice Chair for a term ending July 31, 2014.  Dr. Hallion seconded the motion, and the 
Trustees concurred unanimously.  Mr. Hosseini congratulated Chair Gidel and asked if 
he had any comments.   
 
 Chair Gidel said that he is driven by the famous words of Thomas Edison, 
“Vision without execution is hallucination.”  He is a focused and task-oriented planner.  
As Trustees, our first challenge is to get on the same page with a vision that we can 
agree on as a Board.  Another challenge is that we just “bought” a campus with a 
building under construction.  We also have the daunting task of coming up with our 
own academic endeavor.   
 
 Chair Gidel said that he thought that he would break the Trustees into four 
different task groups.  He said that he would send out a draft of tasks and assignments.  
He is excited to work with the Trustees and the people around the State who are excited 
about the university.  He recited a Chinese proverb, “Success has a thousand fathers, 
and failure is an orphan.”  His hope is that three years down the road that the Board 

9



MINUTES: FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY AUGUST 1, 2012 
                   BOARD OF TRUSTEES           

2 
 

will have thousands of people who will want to take credit for the success of the 
university.  Chair Gidel reported that the Board of Governors, the University of South 
Florida, and the University of Florida have all committed to working as collaborative 
partners in ensuring the success of Florida Polytechnic University.  He wanted to work 
to build a bridge for that triangle.  He acknowledged that the Board has a big, big task, 
and the most important people are the people in Polk County.   
 

Members of the Board of Governors Select Committee on Florida Polytechnic 
University Mori Hosseini, Dick Beard, and Norman Tripp offered the congratulations 
and support of the Board of Governors.  Chancellor Frank T. Brogan echoed the words 
of congratulations and offered assistance from the office of the Board of Governors.  
Chancellor Brogan said that this is an unprecedented and exciting opportunity.   

 
Vice Chair Bostick thanked the Trustees for the incredible opportunity.  He is 

excited about the venture.   
 

4. Adjournment and Scheduling of Next Meeting 
 
 Chair Gidel said that he would like to convene the next meeting within 2-3 
weeks.  Mr. Hosseini thanked the Trustees for wanting to serve the students and the 
State by serving on the Board of Trustees of this magnificent university.  Mr. Hosseini 
turned the gavel over to Chair Gidel.   
 

Chair Gidel asked if any of the Trustees have any further discussion.  Mr. 
Hammack said that the challenge is to attract students to the new university, and he 
things that we have to do it in a new and innovative way.  To him, the question is how 
the State keeps and attracts bright, risk-taking people with high intelligence.  He would 
like to attract 100-500 students who fit that description, offer them experience in private 
companies while they are enrolled, and have the private companies guarantee these 
students jobs for two years after graduation.   

 
Dr. Featherman said that she would like to look at a model with no tenure and 

no football.  She would like to think about facilities that are partitionable because 
programs like engineering require flexibility.  She is excited to be part of this 
opportunity to do something new.   

 
Mr. Hyman said that he wanted to remember that the Board is not operating in a 

vacuum because they are a part of the State University System.  He would like to take 
advantage of the efficiencies offered by being part of the System.  He hopes that the 
university will be offered the flexibility to do new things.   

 
Chancellor Brogan said that the System recognizes that the time to make change 

is now.  He said that Board of Governors would be open to allowing the university to 

10



MINUTES: FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY AUGUST 1, 2012 
                   BOARD OF TRUSTEES           

3 
 

do things significantly differently than conventional methodology.  The Board of 
Governors would like to be involved in creating something unique.   

 
Dr. Hallion said that he would like to have a clear focus on mission.  He would 

like to avoid the problem of trying to be all things to all people.  He thinks that the 
tenure issue has to be considered, and he does not favor it.  As a person with experience 
in the museum world, he likes the idea of moveable partitions for the facilities to allow 
flexibility for the educational programs.    

 
Mr. Martin said that the vision and the mission are critical because they will set 

the course for what will come.  The Board needs to engage the key stakeholders 
including the students that the university wants to attract and local business groups.  
The Board needs to understand how flexible the building and facilities are.  We need a 
work plan that will include longer meetings.  Finally, the Board needs to think about its 
academic program and consider beginning as an upper division institution.   

 
Chair Gidel asked if there was further discussion.  Having no further business, 

the meeting was adjourned at 12:10 p.m., August 1, 2012.   
 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Robert Gidel, Chair 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Monoka Venters, 
Corporate Secretary, 
Board of Governors, 
State University System of Florida  

11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

12



 

 
 

INDEX OF MINUTES 
FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL 

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 
AUGUST 13, 2012 

 
ITEM                   PAGE 
 
1. Call to Order ......................................................................................................................1 
2. Consideration, Critical Path Project Plan ......................................................................1 
3. Concluding Remarks and Adjournment .......................................................................4 

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

14



 

 
 

MINUTES 
FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL 

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 
AUGUST 13, 2012 

 
 The Chair, Robert Gidel, convened the meeting of the Board of Trustees, Florida 
Polytechnic University by telephone conference call from Tallahassee at 1:00 p.m., with 
the following members present:  Vice Chair Mark Bostick, Dr. Sandra Featherman, Dr. 
Richard “Dick” Hallion, Scott Hammack, Kevin Hyman, Frank Martin, and Donald 
Wilson. 
 
1. Call to Order  

 
Chair Gidel thanked members for participating in the conference call.      

 
2. Consideration, Critical Path Project Plan 
 

Chair Gidel explained that the purpose of the call is to provide an overview of 
the objectives that need to be accomplished, the tasks before the Board, and to organize 
the Board to accomplish these objectives.  To help the Trustees visualize these tasks, 
Chair Gidel developed a Critical Path Project Plan that the Trustees received prior to the 
meeting.   

 
Chair Gidel reported that he has met with members and staff of the Board of 

Governors, Chair John Ramil and President Genshaft from the University of South 
Florida, the consultants hired by USF to manage the construction, the outside architects 
for the project, the general contractor building the project, the Provost of UF and 
members of his staff, and the management of the Phosphate Institute.  Chair Gidel also 
reported that he had toured the campus site and many of the other properties that may 
transfer to Poly.  He said that he will continue to meet with people to gain the 
knowledge needed to make the important decisions going forward, and he encouraged 
other Trustees to do the same.   
 
 Chair Gidel explained that the Critical Path Project Plan is far from complete.  He 
provided the document as a way to better understand the sequencing of all of the 
matters that must take place.  Chair Gidel stressed that the need to do things correctly 
and in the necessary sequence will delay the completion of many of the objectives.  He 
explained that the Board has been asked to oversee and organize the transfer from 
University of South Florida of the assets of the former USF- Polytechnic University, 
including a large tract of land and a building under construction. Once accomplished, 

15



MINUTES: FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY          AUGUST 13, 2012 
                     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

2 
 

these assets, including cash, grants, and other financial commitments will be used to 
build an independent Polytechnic University.  
 

Chair Gidel pointed out that as of today, the Florida Polytechnic Board has 
nothing – no money, no people, no obligations, no assets, not even a bank account. 
Chair Gidel reported that today he received a federal tax ID that will allow the Board to 
establish a bank account.  Chair Gidel explained that the Board needs people to manage 
the operations, the properties, and the money before the Board can begin the talk about 
the educational vision of the Poly.   
 
 Chair Gidel reported that he has established four committees with two members 
on each committee.  The committees are as follows:  

(1) Transition Committee – Rob Gidel and Don Wilson, 
(2) Educational Committee – Sandra Featherman and Dick Hallion, 
(3) Financial – Mark Bostick and Scott Hammack, and  
(4) Operations – Kevin Hyman and Frank Martin.   

 
These committees are tasked with learning what and how each of the objectives on the 
Critical Path Project Plan can be completed as well as creating a timetable for 
completing the objectives.  Chair Gidel said that the Board will meet again on 
September 5th to begin to better understand the sequencing, the restrictions, the gotchas, 
the alternatives, and some of the solutions.  
 

Chair Gidel said that the first objective is to get the transition closed with the 
University of South Florida (USF).  USF will keep the assets and personnel they need to 
teach-out the students currently enrolled in USF in Lakeland.  Assets not needed for the 
teach-out will transfer to Florida Poly. The list of items to be transferred to Poly consists 
of leases, vehicles, monies, consulting contracts, the Phosphate Institute, and the 
campus and the building under construction.  The Transition Committee will work on 
the tasks needed to complete the transaction, but the final decision to accept the 
transaction and close is a decision for the full Board.  Chair Gidel said that the timing of 
this transaction is urgent because the monies needed by USF for the teach-out are being 
held until the transaction is completed. He said that he put September 30 in the chart to 
reflect that urgency.  
 

Chair Gidel said that another task involves the management of the construction 
site.  The Board will need to decide whether to retain the staff currently working on the 
project under the University of South Florida, including the owner’s representative Pete 
Karamitsanis.  Upon completion of the transfer, the Board must be ready to assume 
responsibility for the construction immediately.  Being ready to accept the construction 
will be a herculean task.   
 

16



MINUTES: FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY          AUGUST 13, 2012 
                     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

3 
 

Chair Gidel reported that the next objective on the Critical Path Project Plan chart 
is organizing the administration.  The Operations Committee will handle this task.  
Chair Gidel said that the Board could enter into a shared services agreement with 
another university to provide HR, IS, basic legal, and other administrative services until 
the new university can do so.  Chair Gidel reported that he had met with the University 
of Florida (UF), and they are considering providing these services.  UF will construct a 
proposal for services and a fair fee arrangement for the Board meeting on September 
5th.   
 
 Chair Gidel said that another grouping of tasks involves the facilities.  In 
addition to the classroom building under construction, other buildings such as student 
dining, activities, and housing need to be considered.  These facilities require sources of 
funds which will not be an easy task given the state of PECO funding.  The Operations 
Committee will also handle these tasks.   
 
 Another group of tasks is establishing the financial infrastructure for the 
university including establishing basic accounting and budgeting, processing capital 
from the state, establishing a Direct Service Organization that will become our 
Foundation, funding the construction and related activities, and setting up the student 
services systems, which includes tuition, fees, and health. Once the university is 
accepting and spending money, we must have an audit function operating as well. The 
Financial Committee will handle these tasks.   
 
 Chair Gidel said that we also have a group for educational strategy, policy, and 
accreditation.  This task is the probably most important, so the Educational Committee 
must first understand the opportunities and limitations of accreditation.  The 
Committee will also begin to design the criteria we will use to chose a President and 
determine who will execute this strategy.  
 
 Chair Gidel said that the final two tasks on the Critical Path Project Plan are the 
vision statement and marketing.  These tasks must be executed as a full Board.  Chair 
Gidel suggested that the Board hold a meeting in late September and use a facilitator or 
strategic planner to work with the Board on establishing the framework and key 
elements of a common vision.  The goal for the meeting would be developing a 
statement that can be supported by an executable plan for Poly. 
 
 Chair Gidel laid out the ground rules for communication using the staff at the 
Board of Governors to create a library of documents for each committee.  The Board of 
Governors staff will forward any materials to all Trustees.   Chair Gidel called on the 
Board of Governors General Counsel Vikki Shirley to provide a brief overview of the 
communications requirements under the Sunshine rules applicable in Florida.  Ms. 
Shirley reviewed the Sunshine law requirements including providing notice of the 

17



MINUTES: FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY          AUGUST 13, 2012 
                     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

4 
 

meeting and having a corporate secretary at the meeting to take minutes.  Ms. Shirley 
also reviewed the civil and criminal penalties applicable for violations of the law.  Dr. 
Featherman asked whether Committee meetings will need to follow these rules, and 
Ms. Shirley responded that the rules apply to Committee meetings because two 
members of the Board are on each committee.   
 
 Chancellor Brogan commended Chair Gidel on the extensive work that went into 
developing the Critical Path Project Plan chart and organizing the work of the Board of 
Trustees.  He also commended the University of Florida for its commitment to assist the 
Polytechnic through this monumental process.  Chancellor Brogan said that the Board 
of Governors looks forward to being partners with the Florida Polytechnic Board of 
Trustees in accomplishing both short- and long-term goals.   
 
 Chair Gidel clarified that he is not looking for the Committees to accomplish 
anything before the September 5th Board meeting.  The task for the interim period is to 
become familiar with the materials that are available.   
 
3. Concluding Remarks and Adjournment 
 
 Chair Gidel opened the floor for comments from the Trustees.   
 
 Mr. Hyman asked for guidance about how to orchestrate meetings with the staff 
from the University of Florida or other people who are involved.  Chair Gidel said that 
the staff from the Board of Governors is dedicated to helping our Trustees.  Chancellor 
Brogan suggested that Chair Gidel assign a lead contact person for each committee and 
committed to providing a contact person at the Board of Governors office for each 
Committee.   
 
 Mr. Wilson commented that the idea of contracting for services with another 
university is a good idea, but he thought that the Board of Trustees needs a Chief 
Operating Officer who works directly for the Board.  Chair Gidel said that there is a 
sequencing issue – should the Board hire a Chief Operating Officer or close the 
transaction with the University of South Florida first.  He also commented that finding a 
person with the complete set of skills needed – operating, infrastructure, financial, and 
construction experience – will be expensive.  Mr. Hyman suggested that it might be 
more reasonable for the University of Florida to hire the person because they have the 
infrastructure in place to handle hiring.  Chair Gidel said that option has been discussed 
with the University of Florida.  He also said that the Board may be able to bifurcate the 
functions if Pete Karamitsanis can handle the construction aspects.  He pointed out that 
the Board does not currently have access to money to pay anyone.  Chair Gidel also 
suggested that the Board discuss in September who has the authority to hire a Chief 
Operating Officer.   

18



MINUTES: FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY          AUGUST 13, 2012 
                     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

5 
 

 
 Mr. Martin asked whether the target date for closing is September 30, 2012.  
Chair Gidel said that he choose that date to reflect the urgency of the task because the 
University of South Florida has money for the teach-out hanging in the balance.  He 
recognizes that the urgency is met with necessary caution on the part of the Florida 
Polytechnic Board because our Board needs to understand the transaction and to be 
able to handle what is being transferred.  Mr. Martin asked whether the information to 
assess the transfer will be available for review.  Chair Gidel explained that the Board of 
Governors staff would be communicating with the Trustees about how to access that 
information.   
 
 Mr. Hammack commented that getting staff to work directly for the Board of 
Trustees is the first task in his mind.  The second task would be hiring an attorney to 
handle the transaction.  He also agrees that coming up with a vision for doing 
something new and different is crucial.  Chair Gidel agreed that the Board will probably 
need an outside attorney but probably only to handle a handful of the tasks on the list 
of closing items, and the Transition Committee will take that advice to heart.  He also 
agreed that the vision is crucial and will be guided by the framework developed by the 
members of the Educational Committee to meet the accreditation standards.  Mr. 
Hammack pointed out that the Board needs a direction and vision early on that will 
lead to the creation of something new and different.   
 
 Vice Chair Bostick commented that he would like to get a lead assigned for each 
committee.  He also appreciated the offer from Chancellor Brogan to assign a staff 
person from the Board of Governors to assist with the work of the committees.  Both 
steps will help the work of the Board move forward.  
 
 Dr. Hallion seconded the ideas of Vice Chair Bostick.  He also commented that he 
likes the ideas of Mr. Hammack about getting a vision in place to create a new kind of 
university.   
 
 Dr. Featherman requested that the Board set a regular meeting schedule.  Chair 
Gidel said that he would get a meeting calendar to the Trustees by the September 5th 
meeting.  Dr. Featherman asked for direction on what needs to be accomplished before 
September.  Chair Gidel said that the only task is working to understand the tasks 
ahead and the sequencing.  Information will be provided for the Trustees to read.   
 
 Chair Gidel said that the meeting on September 5th would be held in Lakeland.  
There will be a site tour available for members who want to participate.  We will also be 
able to look at models of the site.  Details will be forthcoming.   
 
 

19



MINUTES: FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY          AUGUST 13, 2012 
                     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

6 
 

 
Having no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:58 p.m., August 13, 

2012.   
 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Robert Gidel, Chair 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Monoka Venters, 
Corporate Secretary, 
Board of Governors, 
State University System of Florida  

20



 FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 September 5, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion of Board Authority 
 
 
 PROPOSED BOARD ACTION   
 
For Information Only 

 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution; Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida; Board of 
Governors Regulation 1.001 
 
 
 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
Pursuant to Article IX, Section 7 of the Florida Constitution, university boards of 
trustees are responsible for administering their respective institutions and have such 
powers and duties as delegated to the boards from the Board of Governors.  The Board 
of Governors, through regulation, has delegated substantial authority to university 
boards for all aspects of university operations.  Ms. Shirley will provide an overview of 
the authority delegated to the board.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation Included: Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution 
      Board of Governors Regulation 1.001 
 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Vikki Shirley 

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

22



CONSTITUTION  
OF THE  

STATE OF FLORIDA 

AS REVISED IN 1968 AND SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED 

 

ARTICLE IX  

EDUCATION  

SECTION 7.  State University System.--  

(a)  PURPOSES.  In order to achieve excellence through teaching students, advancing research and 
providing public service for the benefit of Florida's citizens, their communities and economies, the 
people hereby establish a system of governance for the state university system of Florida.  

(b)  STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM.  There shall be a single state university system comprised of all 
public universities. A board of trustees shall administer each public university and a board of 
governors shall govern the state university system.  

(c)  LOCAL BOARDS OF TRUSTEES.  Each local constituent university shall be administered by a 
board of trustees consisting of thirteen members dedicated to the purposes of the state university 
system. The board of governors shall establish the powers and duties of the boards of trustees. 
Each board of trustees shall consist of six citizen members appointed by the governor and five 
citizen members appointed by the board of governors. The appointed members shall be confirmed 
by the senate and serve staggered terms of five years as provided by law. The chair of the faculty 
senate, or the equivalent, and the president of the student body of the university shall also be 
members.  

(d)  STATEWIDE BOARD OF GOVERNORS.  The board of governors shall be a body corporate 
consisting of seventeen members. The board shall operate, regulate, control, and be fully 
responsible for the management of the whole university system. These responsibilities shall 
include, but not be limited to, defining the distinctive mission of each constituent university and its 
articulation with free public schools and community colleges, ensuring the well-planned 
coordination and operation of the system, and avoiding wasteful duplication of facilities or 
programs. The board's management shall be subject to the powers of the legislature to appropriate 
for the expenditure of funds, and the board shall account for such expenditures as provided by 
law. The governor shall appoint to the board fourteen citizens dedicated to the purposes of the 
state university system. The appointed members shall be confirmed by the senate and serve 
staggered terms of seven years as provided by law. The commissioner of education, the chair of the 
advisory council of faculty senates, or the equivalent, and the president of the Florida student 
association, or the equivalent, shall also be members of the board.  

History.--Proposed by Initiative Petition filed with the Secretary of State August 6, 2002; adopted 
2002. 

23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

24



1.001    University Board of Trustees Powers and Duties  
 
(1) Pursuant to Article IX, section 7(c), Florida Constitution, the Board of 
Governors shall establish the powers and duties of the board of trustees as set 
forth herein and as may be established in Board of Governors’ regulations.  This 
regulation supersedes the delegation of authority to the boards of trustees 
contained in the Board of Governors’ Resolution dated January 7, 2003.  The 
intent of this regulation is to delegate powers and duties to the university boards 
of trustees so that the university boards have all of the powers and duties 
necessary and appropriate for the direction, operation, management, and 
accountability of each state university. 
 
(2) Composition of Boards; Membership and Organization. 
 (a) Each university shall be administered by a board of trustees, consisting 
  of thirteen members dedicated to the purposes of the State University  
  System.  Each university board of trustees includes six members  
  appointed by the Governor and five members appointed by the Board  
  of Governors, all of whom must be confirmed by the Senate.  All  
  trustees are required to attend a Board of Governors orientation   
  session, preferably prior to service on the university board.  The chair 
  of the faculty senate, or the equivalent, and the president of Student 
  Government, or the equivalent, are also members.  Board of trustee  
  members shall serve staggered terms of five years and may be   
  reappointed for subsequent terms, except for the faculty and student  
  representatives who shall serve for the duration of the term of their  
  respective elected offices.  All members are public officers subject to  
  the requirements of the Florida Code of Ethics. 
 (b) Each board of trustees shall select its chair and vice chair from the  
  appointed members.  Each chair shall serve for two years and may be  
  reselected for one additional consecutive two-year term. Any   
  exception to this term of office must be approved by a two-thirds vote  
  of the board of trustees. The duties of the chair shall include presiding  
  at all meetings of the board of trustees, calling special meetings of the  
  board of trustees, attesting to actions of the board of trustees, and  
  notifying the Board of Governors or the Governor, as applicable, in  
  writing whenever a board member has three consecutive unexcused  
  absences from regular board meetings in any fiscal year, which may be 
  grounds for removal.   
 (c) The university president shall serve as the chief executive officer and  
  corporate secretary of the board of trustees and shall be responsible to  
  the board of trustees for all operations of the university and for setting  
  the agenda for meetings of the board of trustees in consultation with  
  the chair.   

25



 (d) Members of the boards of trustees shall receive no compensation but  
  may be reimbursed for travel and per diem expenses as provided in          
  s. 112.061, Florida Statutes. 
 (e) Each board of trustees shall establish the powers and duties of the  
  university president. 
 (f) Each board of trustees shall be a public body corporate with all the  
  powers of a body corporate, including the power to adopt a corporate  
  seal, to contract and be contracted with, to sue and be sued, to plead  
  and be impleaded in all courts of law and equity, and to give and  
  receive donations.  In all suits against the board of trustees, service of  
  process shall be made on the chair of the board of trustees or on a  
  university designee. 
 (g) Each board of trustees shall be primarily acting as an instrumentality  
  of the state pursuant to s. 768.28, Florida Statutes, for purposes of  
  sovereign immunity.   
 (h) Each board of trustees is subject to the public records and open   
  meetings requirements set forth in Article I, section 24 of the Florida  
  Constitution and laws implementing that section.   
 
(3) University Administration and Oversight. 
 (a) Each board of trustees shall be responsible for the administration of its  
  university in a manner that is dedicated to, and consistent with the  
  university’s mission which shall be otherwise consistent with the  
  mission and purposes of the State University System as defined by the  
  Board of Governors. 
 (b) Each board of trustees may establish committees of the board to   
  address matters including, but not limited to, academic and student  
  affairs, strategic planning, finance, audit, property acquisition and  
  construction, personnel, and budgets. 
 (c) Each board of trustees shall adopt a strategic plan in alignment with  
  the Board of Governors’ systemwide strategic plan and regulations,  
  and the university’s mission.  University strategic plans shall be   
  submitted to the Board of Governors for approval.   
 (d) Each board of trustees shall prepare a multi-year workplan/report for  
  the Board of Governors that outlines its university’s top priorities,  
  strategic directions, and specific actions and financial plans for   
  achieving those priorities, as well as performance expectations and  
  outcomes on institutional and systemwide goals.  The workplan/ 
  report shall reflect the university’s distinctive mission and focus on  
  core institutional strengths within the context of State University  
  System goals and regional and statewide needs.  
 (e) Each board of trustees shall have a policy addressing conflicts of  
  interest for its members.  

26



 (f) Each board of trustees shall maintain an effective information system  
  to provide accurate, timely, and cost-effective information about the  
  university, and shall require that all data and reporting requirements  
  of the Board of Governors are met. 
 (g) Each board of trustees may promulgate regulations and procedures  
  related to data and technology, including information systems,   
  communications systems, computer hardware and software, and  
  networks.   
 (h) Each board of trustees is authorized to secure comprehensive general  
  liability insurance. 
 (i) Each board of trustees may provide for payment of the cost of civil  
  actions against officers, employees, or agents of its board. 
 (j) Each board of trustees is authorized to promulgate university   
  regulations in accordance with the Regulation Development Procedure 
  adopted by the Board of Governors.   

(k) Each board of trustees may govern traffic on the grounds of the   
 university and in other areas in accordance with law and any mutual 
 aid agreements entered into with other law enforcement agencies. 

(l) Each board of trustees shall be responsible for campus safety and  
 emergency preparedness, to include safety and security measures for  
 university personnel, students, and campus visitors. 
 (m) Each board of trustees is authorized to create divisions of sponsored  
  research and establish policies regulating the administration and  
  operation of the divisions of sponsored research.   

 
(4) Academic Programs and Student Affairs. 
 (a) Each board of trustees shall adopt university regulations or policies, as  
  appropriate, in areas including, but not limited to:  
  1. authorization and discontinuance of degree programs; 
  2. articulation and access; 
  3. admission and enrollment of students; 
  4. minimum academic performance standards for the award of a  
   degree; 
  5. student financial assistance; 
  6. student activities and organizations; 
  7. student records and reports; 
  8. antihazing, related penalties, and program for enforcement; 
  9. reasonable accommodation of religious observances; and 
  10. uniform student code of conduct and related penalties. 

 Such regulations or policies shall be consistent with any applicable  
  Board of Governors’ regulations. 
 (b) Each board of trustees shall establish a committee to periodically  
  review and evaluate the student judicial system.  At least one-half of  

27



  the members of the committee shall be students appointed by the  
  student body president. 
 (c) Each board of trustees shall approve the internal procedures of student 
  government organizations.  
 (d) Each board of trustees shall require that institutional control and  
  oversight of its intercollegiate athletics program is in compliance with  
  the rules and regulations of the National Collegiate Athletic   
  Association. The university president is responsible for the   
  administration of all aspects of the intercollegiate athletics program. 
  
(5) Personnel. 
 (a) Each board of trustees shall provide for the establishment of the   
  personnel program for all the employees of the university, including  
  the president, which may include but is not limited to: compensation  
  and other conditions of employment, recruitment and selection,   
  nonreappointment, standards for performance and conduct,   
  evaluation, benefits and hours of work, leave policies, recognition and  
  awards, inventions and works, travel, learning opportunities,   
  exchange programs, academic freedom and responsibility, promotion,  
  assignment, demotion, transfer, tenure, and permanent status, ethical  
  obligations and conflicts of interest, restrictive covenants, disciplinary  
  actions, complaints, appeals and grievance procedures, and separation  
  and termination from employment.  To the extent allowed by law,  
  university employees shall continue to be able to participate in the  
  state group insurance programs and the state retirement systems. 
 (b) Each board of trustees shall act as the sole public employer with regard 

to all public employees of its university for the purposes of collective 
bargaining, and shall serve as the legislative body for the resolution of 
impasses with regard to collective bargaining matters.   

(c) Each board of trustees shall select its university president subject to 
confirmation of the candidate by the Board of Governors.  A 
presidential search committee shall be appointed to make 
recommendations to the full board of trustees.  The board of trustees 
shall select a candidate for confirmation by the Board of Governors.  
Prior to confirmation, the board of trustees shall submit a written 
description of the selection process and criteria, and the qualifications 
of the selected candidate to the Board of Governors for its 
consideration in confirming the candidate. The candidate selected by 
the board of trustees shall be required to appear before the Board of 
Governors at the meeting where confirmation of the candidate will be 
considered. Such meeting will be held as soon as practicable to ensure 
a timely transition.  A two-thirds vote of the Board of Governors shall 

28



be required to deny confirmation of a candidate selected by a board of 
trustees. 

 (d) In the event that a board of trustees selects an interim president, such 
selection is subject to confirmation of the candidate by the Board of 
Governors.  If it is determined by the board of trustees to be in the best 
interests of the university, the interim president selected by the board 
may be delegated full authority to serve as the interim president 
during the period prior to confirmation by the Board of Governors.  
Continued service as interim president requires confirmation by the 
Board of Governors, and the candidate selected by the board of 
trustees shall be required to appear before the Board of Governors at 
the meeting where confirmation will be considered.  Such meeting will 
be held as soon as practicable to ensure a timely transition.    

 (e) Each board of trustees shall develop guidelines for the annual   
  evaluation of the president.   
 (f) Each board of trustees shall conduct an annual evaluation of the  
  president.  The chair of the board of trustees shall request input from  
  the Chair of the Board of Governors, who may involve the Chancellor,  
  during the annual evaluation process pertaining to responsiveness to  
  the Board of Governors’ strategic goals and priorities, and compliance  
  with systemwide regulations. 
 
(6) Financial Management. 
 (a) Each board of trustees shall be responsible for the financial   
  management of its university and shall submit an institutional budget  
  request, including a request for fixed capital outlay, and an operating  
  budget to the Board of Governors for approval in accordance with the  
  guidelines established by the Board of Governors. 
 (b) Each board of trustees shall establish tuition and fees in accordance  
  with regulations established by the Board of Governors. 
 (c) Each board of trustees shall establish waivers for tuition and fees  
  pursuant to regulations established by the Board of Governors. 
 (d) Each board of trustees shall engage in sound debt management   
  practices for the issuance of debt by the university and its direct   
  support organizations, and shall comply with the guidelines   
  established by the Board of Governors in connection with the   
  authorization, issuance and sale of university and direct support  
  organization debt. 
 (e) Each board of trustees shall account for expenditures of all state, local,  
  federal, and other funds in accordance with guidelines or regulations  
  established by the Board of Governors, and as provided by state or  
  federal law. 

29



 (f)     Each board of trustees may enter into agreements for, and accept,  
  credit card payments as compensation for goods, services, tuition,  
  and fees. 
 (g) Each board of trustees shall establish policies and procedures for the  
  performance of annual internal audits of university finances and  
  operations.  All reports generated from such audits must be submitted  
  to the Board of Governors after review and acceptance by the board of  
  trustees, or its designee. 
 (h) Each board of trustees and each direct support organization shall  
  submit annual financial statements to the Board of Governors. 

 
(7) Property and Purchasing. 
 (a) Each board of trustees and university direct support organization must 
  obtain prior approval from the Board of Governors before entering  
  into a binding contractual obligation to improve real property that will 
  result in the board or the direct support organization seeking a   
  commitment of state funds for the development, construction,   
  operation, or maintenance of an educational or research facility.   
 (b) Each board of trustees shall have the authority to acquire real and  
  personal property and contract for the sale and disposal of same, and  
  approve and execute contracts for purchase, sale, lease, license, or  
  acquisition of commodities, goods, equipment, and contractual   
  services, leases of real and personal property, and construction.  The  
  acquisition may include purchase by installment or lease-purchase.   
  Such contracts may provide for payment of interest on the unpaid  
  portion of the purchase price.   
 (c) With respect to state-funded real property acquisitions, each board of  
  trustees may, with the consent of the Board of Trustees of the Internal  
  Improvement Trust Fund, sell, convey, transfer, exchange, trade, or  
  purchase real property and related improvements necessary and  
  desirable to serve the needs and purposes of the university.  
 1. The board of trustees may secure appraisals and surveys in  
  accordance with the policies and procedures of the Board of  
  Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund.  Whenever the  
  board of trustees finds it necessary for timely property   
  acquisition, it may contract, without the need for competitive  
  selection, with one or more appraisers whose names are   
  contained on the list of approved appraisers maintained by the  
  Division of State Lands in the Department of Environmental  
  Protection. 
          2. The board of trustees may negotiate and enter into an option  
   contract before an appraisal is obtained.  The option contract  
   must state that the final purchase price may not exceed the   

30



   maximum value allowed by law.  The consideration for such an  
   option contract may not exceed 10 percent of the estimate   
   obtained by the board of trustees or 10 percent of the value  
   of the parcel, whichever is greater, unless otherwise authorized  
   by the board of trustees. 
 3. Title to property acquired by a university board of trustees prior  
  to January 7, 2003, and to property acquired thereafter with state  
  funds shall vest in the Board of Trustees of the Internal   
  Improvement Trust Fund.  With respect to all other real property  
  acquired by a university, such property shall be titled in the name 
  of the university board of trustees, or as the trustees of the   
  university may deem appropriate. 
 (d) Each board of trustees shall submit to the Board of Governors, for  
  approval, plans for all new campuses and instructional centers. 
 (e) Each board of trustees shall administer a program for the maintenance  
  and construction of facilities.   
 (f) Each board of trustees may exercise the right of eminent domain  
  pursuant to the provisions of chapter 1013, Florida Statutes.   
 (g) Each board of trustees shall be responsible for the use, maintenance,  
  protection, and control of, and the imposition of charges for,   
  university-owned or university-controlled buildings and grounds,  
  property and equipment, name trademarks and other proprietary  
  marks, and the financial and other resources of the university.   
 (h) With respect to any funds or real or personal property designated by  
  will, deed, agreement, or court appointment to be held in trust for the  
  benefit of the university, or its students, faculty members, officers, or  
  employees, or otherwise, or for any educational purpose, a university  
  board of trustees is authorized to act as trustee with full legal capacity  
  as trustee to administer such trust property and, in such event, the title 
  thereto shall vest in the board of trustees as trustee.  In all such cases,  
  the university board of trustees shall have the power and capacity to  
  do and perform all things as fully as any individual trustee or other  
  competent trustee might do or perform, and with the same rights,  
  privileges, and duties including the power, capacity, and authority to  
  convey, transfer, mortgage, or pledge such property held in trust and  
  to contract and execute all other documents relating to said trust  
  property which may be required for or appropriate to the   
  administration of such trust or to accomplish the purposes of any such  
  trust.  Nothing herein shall be construed to authorize a board of   
  trustees to contract a debt on behalf of, or in any way to obligate, the  
  state; and the satisfaction of any debt or obligation incurred by the  
  board as trustee under the provisions of this section shall be   
  exclusively from the trust property, mortgaged or encumbered. 

31



 (i) Each board of trustees shall prepare and adopt a campus master plan  
  pursuant to section 1013.30, Florida Statutes. 
 (j) Each board of trustees shall prepare, adopt, and execute a campus  
  development agreement pursuant to section 1013.30, Florida Statutes. 
 (k) Each board of trustees may authorize the rent or lease of parking  
  facilities, provided that such facilities are funded through parking fees  
  or parking fines imposed by a university. A board of trustees may  
  authorize a university to charge fees for parking at such rented or  
  leased parking facilities and parking fines.   
 (l) Each board of trustees shall promulgate regulations that establish basic 
  criteria related to the procurement of commodities and contractual  
  services.   
 (m) Each board of trustees shall be responsible for the fire safety and  
  sanitation of public educational and ancillary plants.   

 
(8) Miscellaneous Powers and Duties. 
 (a) Each board of trustees is authorized to form such corporate entities as  
  are necessary to establish and maintain faculty practice plans for the  
  collection, distribution, and regulation of fees generated by faculty  
  members engaged in the provision of healthcare services to patients as  
  an integral part of their academic activities and employment as faculty.  
  Each such faculty practice plan must be adopted by the board of  
  trustees in accordance with regulations of the Board of Governors and  
  approved by the Board of Governors. 
 (b) Each board of trustees is authorized to establish direct support   
  organizations and university health services support organizations and 
  certify them to use university property, facilities, and services. 
 (c) Each board of trustees may establish educational research centers for  
  child development. 
 (d) Each board of trustees is authorized to protect, develop, and transfer  
  the work products of university personnel and other university agents  
  and contractors, which authority shall include but not be limited to  
  licensing,  assigning, selling, leasing, or otherwise allowing the use of  
  or conveying such work products and securing and enforcing patents,  
  copyrights, and trademarks on such products.  Each board of trustees  
  shall have policies and procedures concerning the work products of  
  university personnel that facilitate technology development and  
  transfer for the public benefit.  Such policies must include, without  
  limitation, provisions that take into account the contributions of   
  university personnel in the development of work products and that  
  require any proceeds from such work products be used to support the  
  research and sponsored training programs of the university.   

32



 (e) Each board of trustees is responsible for compliance with all applicable 
  laws, rules, regulations, and requirements. 
 (f) Each board of trustees shall perform such other duties as provided by  
  the Board of Governors, or as each board of trustees may determine  
  are necessary or appropriate for the administration of the university so 
  long as the trustees comply with any applicable laws and Board of  
  Governors’ regulations and policies. 
 
Authority:  Section 7(c), Art. IX, Fla. Const.; History:  Resolution 1-07-03, New 3-
26-09, Amended 09-16-10.   
 

33



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

34



 FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 September 5, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: Transition Discussion 
 
 
 PROPOSED BOARD ACTION   
 
For Information Only 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution; Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida; Board of 
Governors Regulation 1.001 
 
 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
A meeting of the Transition Committee was held on August 24 at One Poly Place.  
 
Representatives from the USF, UF and the Board of Governors were in attendance to 
discuss the orderly transfer of assets, contracts, leases, property and funds to Florida 
Polytechnic. 
 
USF representatives provided all documents necessary for a transfer, including a 
summary of closing documents. Those closing documents are attached to this agenda 
item. 
 
Supporting Documentation Included: 1. FPU Funding Overview August 2012 
                                                                        2. Lakeland Cash Transfer 
                                                                        3. Construction Update 8-3-12  
                                                                        4. Special Warranty Deed  
                                                                        5. Bill of Sale 
                                                                        6. Bill of Sale – Exhibit A Inventory of non      

Teach Out 
                                                                        7. Bill of Sale – Exhibit B Inventory of Teach 

Out 
                                                                        8. Construction Budget as of June 18, 2012 
                                                                        9. FIPR memo dated 8-20-01 
 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Rob Gidel, Chair 

Tim Jones, Board of Governors 

35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

36



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
FLORIDA POLYTCHNIC UNIVERSITY 

FUNDING OVERVIEW 
FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 

 
The 2012 General Appropriations Act (Senate Bill 5001) provides funding in the 
Education and General (E&G) budget entity for the operation of the Florida Polytechnic 
University (FL Poly) during fiscal year 2012-20131 (July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013).  
 

Fund Source 2012-13 E&G  
Appropriation  

General Revenue  $22,093,995 
Education Enhancement Trust Fund $367,509 
Student Fees TF $6,028,073 
Phosphate Research TF $5,037,035 

Total $33,526,612 
 
There are four distinct sources of operating funding allocated to FL Poly by the 2012 
Legislature: 
 

1. General Revenue 
2. Educational Enhancement TF (Lottery) 
3. Student Fees TF (Tuition) 
4. Phosphate Research TF 

 
Funding appropriated in the E&G budget entity is provided for the instructional 
mission, research, public service, and general operation of the university, and may not 
be utilized for construction of fixed capital assets. These funds must be spent in 
accordance with state statute and Board of Governors regulation. 
 
Any E&G funding that remains unexpended at the end of the fiscal year becomes 
“University E&G Carryforward” funds. Language in Senate Bill 1994 creates section 
1013.74(6) Florida Statute which provides that for the years 2011-2012 through 2022-
2023, E&G carryforward funding may be used for the construction of legislatively-
approved fixed capital outlay projects authorized for the establishment of a new 
campus. 
 
                                                 
1 The Legislature will convene in the spring of 2013 to approve an operating budget for the 2013-14 fiscal year. 

37



E&G Carryforward from prior years have been transferred and utilized for the 
construction of the new Innovation, Science & Technology building. 
 
General Revenue / Lottery ($22.5 M): 
Both general revenue and lottery funds will be provided as direct payments to FL Poly 
during the fiscal year. General revenue is forwarded by electronic funds transfer to each 
of the state universities twice monthly (around the 5th and 20th) per Florida Statute. 
Payments from lottery dollars, however, are not predetermined but instead are 
processed when available gaming revenues are transferred by the Lottery Department 
to the Department of Education (DOE), and subsequently made available by DOE to the 
state universities in multiple installments - typically during the third and fourth 
quarters of the fiscal year. 
 
Student Fees Trust Fund ($6 M): 
This source of funding is comprised of revenues collected locally at the university from 
students for tuition, out-of-state fees, and other mandatory student fees such as the 
application fee, late registration fees and library fines. The $6 million in the 2012 
General Appropriations Act for FL Poly represents budgetary expenditure authority 
only – the revenue amount collected from actual student enrollments will likely vary 
from this estimate. This budget authority is technically related to the students enrolled 
in the teach-out program administered by USF. If needed, this budget authority will 
need to be transferred to USF (this transfer would be handled by the Board of 
Governors Office). 
 
Phosphate Research Trust Fund ($5 M): 
Section 1004.345(2)(2) Florida Statute transfers the Florida Industrial and Phosphate 
Research Institute (FIPRI) operations and functions to the FL Poly from USF 
Polytechnic. This funding source is comprised of a percentage of severance tax dollars, 
generated as a result of phosphate mining in Florida, that are transferred directly to the 
institute from the Department of Revenue. As with the Student Fees TF, this 
appropriation represents budgetary expenditure authority only and actual tax collection 
amounts will vary from the estimate. These funds are restricted by law for use by the 
FIPRI and may not be utilized for the general operation of FL Poly. 
 

 
 

 

38



39



 
Florida Polytechnic University Campus/Facility – Funding Sources 

  
PECO (Public Education Capital Outlay) & General Revenue:    
 
   2005-06 (General Revenue)   3,700,000 
    2006-07    1,700,000 
    2008-09    15,000,000 
    2010-11    11,417,200 
    2011-12 From Joint Use Lakeland Tech Bldg  Excess 622,534 
    2011-12    35,000,000 
     Total PECO      $ 67,439,734  
 
E&G Carry-Forward Operating Funds:    
 
  2006 FPC Departmental  Carry-Forward    $471,000 
  2009/10 Carry-Forward (Moved from Renovation Account in 2011)   $3,374,065  
  2010/11 Carry-Forward    $7,800,000 
  2011/12 (TBD – estimated to be less than $10 M)  ?????? 
  Total Carry-Forward     $11,645,065 
 
Private Commitments: 
 
  Central Florida Development Council  $5,000,000 
  Lakeland Economic Development Council  $5,000,000 
  Lakeland Regional Medical Center   $500,000 
  Polk County     $10,000,000 
  Interest Earned Transferred Into Project  $313,862      
  Total From Private Donations    $20,813,862 
 

  
    
     

  

(State appropriations for the 
new campus/facility. These 
funds reside in state accounts 
until drawn down by USF.) 

(Education & General (E&G) 
State appropriations for 
operations not spent during the 
prior year that have been 
transferred to the new 
campus/facility. These funds 
reside in USF accounts.) 

(Private pledges that have been 
made. Actual donations that 
have been made will reside in 
the USF Foundation.)  

Board of Governors 8/3/12 40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



 
 

CONSTRUCTION  
UPDATE 

 
   

 
 

    June 20, 2012 

149



 
What Changed From Our Last Update? 

USF Lakeland construction team analysis  
 

• Total project cost was $112M now to $112.1M  
• Owners Representative Contract of $0.1M 

•  Anticipated funding was $96.1M, now $99.9M  
• Central Utility Plant Funds of $3.3M and Carry Forward $0.5M reconciled 

• Total Additional funds required was $15.9M, now $12.3M 
• The difference from $112M - $96.1M  

 
 

150



 
Budget 

      Total budget for Phase I (IST, CUP, Building and Site) to include all costs: 
 
  
$112,193,191  Total Project Cost 
$  99,898,661  Current Funds  
           
 
$12,294,530      Funding Requirement Based on 2010 Plan 
 

 

 

 

  

: 

151



 
 

Breakdown of Additional Funding Required 
 

FF & E: 
• $1,500,000 Furnishings for the Building (Needed late 2013 or early 2014) 

• $1,500,000 Laboratory Equipment for 4 Research Labs (Needed Once Research 
                   Begins) 
• $1,500,000 Classroom Technologies (Smart Boards, Screens, Projectors et.) 
          Total for FF&E $4,500,000 
 

Infrastructure: 
• $2,584,636 Remaining Utility Infrastructure 
• $5,209,894 Internal Road Work and Pond Completion      
           Infrastructure  $7,794,530 

 
 

                 Total Requirement Needed:   $12,294,530 

152



 
Funding Sources   

PECO:    
   2005-06    3,700,000 
    2006-07    1,700,000 
    2008-09    15,000,000 
    2010-11    11,417,200 
    2011-12 From Join Use LTB Excess  622,534 
    2012    35,000,000 
     Total PECO      $ 67,439,734  
 
Carry-Forward:    
 
  2006 FPC Departmental  Carry-Forward    $471,000 
  2009/10 Carry-Forward (Moved from Renovation Account in 2011)   $3,374,065  
  2010/11 Carry-Forward    $7,800,000 
 
  Total Carry-Forward     $11,645,065 
 
Private Commitments: 
 
  Central Florida Development Council  $5,000,000 
  Lakeland Economic Development Council  $5,000,000 
  Lakeland Regional Medical Center   $500,000 
  Polk County     $10,000,000 
  Interest Earned Transferred Into Project  $313,862 
   
  Total From Private Donations    $20,813,862 
 
Total to-date:             $99,898,661*  
   *(not including 2011-2012 carry-forward TBD) 
     

  

153



 
Budget Breakdown   

 
Innovation, Science & Technology 
 
 Construction Costs        $59,991,938 
 A/E Fees        $6,600,000 
            FF & E       
  Furniture     $1,500,000 
  Laboratories (4)     $1,800,000 
  Classroom Technology    $1,200,000   
                                Sub Total  $71,091,938 
Central Utility Plant:                      
  Construction      $2,998,100 
  A/E Fees      $95,000 
  Soft Costs (Fees, Permits)     $106,900    
                                   Sub Total $3,200,000 
Site & Infrastructure Phase 1:      
 A/E Fees (All Phases)       $4,400,000 
 Construction:  
  Clearing and Grading, Roadways    $12,221,806 
  Causeway Sheet Piles    $1,082,276 
  Major Utility Infrastructure    $7,037,632   
                                   Sub Total $24,741,714 
Other Project Costs: 
 Preconstruction Services     $2,494,655 
 Land Acquisition      $3,700,000 
 Master Plan/Early Development     $1,700,000 
 Fire Marshall      $88,075 
 Inspections      $200,000 
 Insurance      $11,000 
 Surveys and Testing     $645,024 
 Permits/Environmental Testing     $213,133 
 Models, Additional Testing Services, and Reimbursable    $896,667 
 Master Plan Update      $525,000 
 Owners Representative Contract     $101,349 
 Owners Contingency     $2,584,636   
                                 Sub Total $13,159,539 
 
                Project Total $112,193,191 
     

  

154



Construction Schedule   
2004-June 30 '12 Q3 '12 Q4 '12 Q1 '13 Q2 '13 Q3 '13 Q4 '13 Q1 '14 Q2 '14 

Land, Pre-Con, Fees, work to-date September December March June September December March April May June 

Other Costs 
Fees 12,421,667 

Land Acquisition 3,700,000 
Pre-Planning 1,700,000 
Other Costs 1,157,232 

Pre-Construction 2,494,655 
Sub-total Other Costs 21,473,554 

IST Facility $59,991,938 
Foundations included above 

Superstructure included above 
Shell & Core included above 

M/E/P/FP included above 
IT & Controls included above 

Interiors included above 
Substantial Completion 

Certificate of Occupancy 
Owner Move-in 

FF&E $4,500,000 

Sub-total Quarterly IST Costs $59,991,938 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Central Utility Plant $3,200,000 
Shell & Core included above 

Equipment included above 

Sub-total Quarterly CUP Costs $3,200,000 

Overall Site 

Clearing , earthwork, Ring Road start, Lift Station  
$2,789,428 

Causeway Sheet Piles  $1,082,276 
Fire Line Piping $287,566 

Main Utility Infra Ph 1 $4,663,332 

Roads Ph 1 $1,100,000 $3,823,823 $2,339,509 

Ponds & Causeways 
$1,769,046 $1,486,724 $1,099,251 

Landscape/Hardscape Ph 1 

Sub-total Quarterly Site Costs $4,159,270 $7,532,378 $5,308,459 $3,339,509 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total per Quarter $88,824,762 $7,532,378 $5,308,459 $3,339,509 $0 $0 $4,500,000 $0 $0 

Owners Contingency $2,584,636 

Owners Representative $101,349.00  

Cummulative Quarterly Totals 
$91,510,747 $99,043,125 $104,353,672 $107,691,093 $107,691,093 $107,691,093 $112,191,093 $112,191,093 $112,191,093 

Notes 

Available Funds *1 $99,898,651 $99,898,651 $99,898,651 $99,898,651 $99,898,651 

Committed Costs $91,510,747 $99,043,125 $104,351,584 $107,691,093 $112,191,093 

Total Project Costs $91,510,747 $99,043,125 $104,353,672 $107,691,093 $112,191,093 

Surplus/Deficit $8,387,904 $855,526 -$4,455,021 -$7,792,442 -$12,294,530      (Provided all contingencies are expended) 
*1 Not including 2011-2012 Balance-Forward funds 

- Reflects the 2010 Plan 
- No Schedule Re-Flow 
- FPU Board Decision 
 

155



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

156



157



158



 FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 September 5, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Shared Services Agreement  
 
 
 PROPOSED BOARD ACTION   
 
Consideration of Shared Services Agreement with the University of Florida 

 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution; Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida; Board of 
Governors Regulation 1.001 
 
 
 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
Section  7 of Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida, authorizes the University of Florida to 
assist the Board in an advisory or consulting capacity in areas including, but not limited 
to, hiring, administration, and accreditation.  The Transition Committee has been 
working with the University of Florida to develop a Shared Services Agreement 
whereby the University of Florida would provide certain administrative services to 
Florida Polytechnic University to include human resources, finance and accounting, and 
construction management.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation Included: None 
 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Don Wilson 

159



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

160



 FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 September 5, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Leases held by the University of South Florida 
 
 
 PROPOSED BOARD ACTION   
 
Approve the assignment of certain leases from the University of South Florida to the 
Florida Polytechnic University.    

 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution; Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida; Board of 
Governors Regulation 1.001 
 
 
 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
There are currently eight leases associated with the former University of South Florida 
Polytechnic campus as described on the attached Summary of Leases.  Pursuant to 
section 2 of Chapter 2012-129, existing contracts held by the University of South Florida 
that relate to the University of South Florida Polytechnic campus shall be transferred to 
the Florida Polytechnic University as determined by the Board of Trustees for USF and 
the Board of Trustees for Florida Polytechnic.   The University of South Florida has 
prepared a Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement (“Lease 
Assignment”) to facilitate the assignment of seven of the leases, but needs to retain the 
leased space in the Interstate Commerce Park for purposes of the teach-out through 
August 2015.   
 
Under the Lease Assignment, all of USF’s leasehold rights and obligations associated 
with the seven leases will be assigned to, and assumed by, Florida Polytechnic 
University, except that USF is amenable in the short term to continue making rent 
payments to the Lessors out of the funds USF currently holds that were previously 
appropriated to the former USF Polytechnic.  Once Florida Polytechnic establishes 
financial operations, USF will provide Florida Polytechnic with an accounting of the 
funds remitted by USF to the various Lessors for reconciliation under the final transfer 
of assets.   
  
 

161



Following the assignment, immediate Board action is required on the leases commonly 
referred to as Blue Sky East I and II located in Winter Haven.  These leases expire on 
September 30, 2012, and the premises contain office furniture and equipment, media 
production equipment, and other specialty items.  The space was used as a business 
incubator, but currently stands vacant except for furnishings.  Combined monthly rent 
for the leases totals $13,584.81 and a decision needs to be made whether to negotiate a 
renewal with the Lessor, the 6/10 Corporation, or allow the leases to expire and remove 
the furnishings.  If the decision is made to allow the leases to expire, the furnishings 
need to be moved into a storage facility.  
 
Similar to Blue Sky East I and II, a Board decision is required on the leased space 
commonly referred to as Blue Sky West located in Lakeland.  This lease was to expire 
on July 31, 2012, but was extended by USF on a month-to-month basis to allow 
sufficient time for Florida Polytechnic to make a decision on whether to retain the space. 
The space was used as a business incubator, but currently stands vacant except for 
furnishings and fixtures, including a slide that will have to be removed if the Board 
decides to terminate the month-to-month tenancy.  If the Board decides to terminate the 
tenancy, a thirty-day notice must be provided to the Lessor, Marcobay Properties, Inc., 
and a storage facility will need to be rented for storage of the furnishings.  The monthly 
rental payment is $1,500.  The Board will also be required to return the space to 
substantially the same condition as when the leased commenced.  
 
With respect to the other two leased premises commonly referred to as the Brain Lab 
and the Wauchula Lodge space, the Board may want to delegate authority to the 
Transition Committee to enter into negotiations with the respective landlords on the 
possibility of early termination or subleasing the space.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation Included: Summary of Leases     

   Lease Assignment, Assumption and                    
                                    Indemnity Agreement 

 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Vikki Shirley 

162



Summary of Leases 

 Lease Term Location Monthly Rent Description Use 
1 Blue Sky West 8/1/09 – 7/31/12 

Now on month-to-
month tenancy 

116 S. Kentucky Ave, 
Lakeland 

$1,500 6,428 sf. ; Office space contains 
furniture, office equipment, and 
a slide 

Business 
incubator 

2 Blue Sky East I 9/1/09 – 9/30/12 199 Ave. B, NW, Suite 
240, Winter Haven 

$6,438.38 3,400 sf.; Office space contains 
furniture, office equipment, 
media equipment, and  
refrigerator 

Business 
accelerator 
program 

3 Blue Sky East II 1/1/10 – 9/30/12 199 Ave. B, NW, Suite 
240, Winter Haven 

$7,146.43 3,760 sf.;  Office space contains 
furniture, office equipment, 
media equipment, and 
refrigerators 

Business 
accelerator 
program 

4 Brain Lab 2/1/11 – 1/31/14 199 Ave. B, NW, Suite 
205, Winter haven 

$3,245.83 2,015 sf.;  Office space contains 
furniture, equipment, and 
refrigerator 

Brain studies 
testing & 
research facility 

5 One Poly Place, 1st 
Floor 

5/1/11 – 4/30/14 439 S. Florida Ave, 
Suite 100,  Lakeland 

$5,630.91; rent 
prepaid 
through 
12/31/12 

3,859 sf.; Office space contains 
furniture and small refrigerator 

Administrative 
offices 

6 One Poly Place, 2nd 
Floor 

4/1/11 – 3/31/14 439 S. Florida Ave. 
Suite 300, Lakeland 

$11,458.33; 
rent prepaid for 
full three years 

10,000 sf.; Office space contains 
furniture, white board, patio 
furniture 

Administrative 
offices 

7 Wauchula 2/1/10 – 1/31/13 116 Main St. 
Wauchula 

$1,000 2,400 sf.; Office space contains 
furniture and refrigerator 

Learning center 

8 CTI Lab 2/1/10 – 1/31/15 4100 S. Frontage Rd, 
Suite 102, Lakeland 

$14,176.25 13,139 sf.;  College of 
Technology & 
Innovation 

163



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

164



SUMMARY OF LEASES  

1. Blue Sky West  

Lessor: Marcobay Properties, Inc. 

Lease Term: 8/1/09 – 7/31/12, extended on month-to-month basis up to 1/31/13 

Location: 116 South Kentucky Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 

Rent: $18,000 annually paid in monthly increments of $1,500 

Description: Approximately 6,428 square feet of office space containing office furniture,  
office equipment, and a slide.  Original lease included 12 parking spaces at 
Main Street Garage; lease amendment referenced below eliminated 
parking spaces. 

Use: Business incubation facility where faculty, staff and students can work 
and engage with third party entities and businesses in developing 
technology and other business activities. 

Assignment:  Permitted with prior written approval of Lessor and payment of $500 
administrative fee.   

Alterations: Substantial alterations require prior written consent of Lessor and 
ownership vests in Lessor upon installation.  If Lessor declines to own an 
improvement, Lessee shall remove the alteration and return the Premises 
to prior condition.  The slide is such an alteration that must be removed if 
lease is terminated. 

Termination: Lessee must provide written notice 30 days prior to effective date of 
termination. 

Notices: Via registered, certified or express mail service or overnight courier to 

Marcobay Properties, B.J. Miller, 4025 S. Pipkin Rd., Lakeland, Fl 33811-
1424 

Amendment: Lease amended 7/11/12 to extend term on month-to-month basis up to 
1/31/13; all other lease terms remain the same, except parking spaces 
were eliminated.   

 

 

 

165



 

2.      Blue Sky East I 

Lessor: The 6/10 Corporation 

Lease Term: 9/1/09 – 9/30/12 

Location: 199 Avenue B, Northwest, Suite 240, Winter Haven, Florida 

Rent: $6,438.38 monthly, which includes a pro rata share of common area 
expenses and certain utilities 

Description: 3400 square feet which consists of a portion of Condominium Unit 2-1 and 
a portion of Suite 240, with right to use common elements (break room 
and business center).  Space contains office furniture, office equipment, 
media equipment, refrigerator, and Star Wars figures. 

Use: Business accelerator program and administrative offices where faculty, 
staff and students can work and engage with third party entities and 
businesses in developing technology and other business activities.  

Assignment: Permitted with prior written consent of Lessor. 

Alterations: Material alterations require prior written consent of Lessor and Lessor to 
inform Tenant at that time whether such alterations must be removed 
upon termination of the lease.  

Termination: Lease terminates at end of term without the necessity of notice from either 
Tenant or Lessor.  Any holding over after the lease expires for more than 
30 days with the Lessor’s consent shall be construed as a month-to-month 
tenancy and Tenant shall pay 125% of the rental amount.  There is no 
provision for early termination by Lessee. 

Notices: Via certified mail or nationally recognized delivery service to 

 The 6/10 Corporation, Carl J. Strang, III, President, P.O. Box 7378, Winter 
Haven, Florida 33883-7378   

Amendment: First Amendment dated 4/19/11 increased monthly rent to $6,579.33 
based on annual adjustment for Utilities and Common Area Expenses; 

 Second Amendment dated 2/8/12 decreased monthly rent to $6,438.38 
based on annual adjustment for Utilities and Common Area Expenses. 

 

 

166



 

3.      Blue Sky East II 

Lessor: The 6/10 Corporation 

Lease Term: 1/1/10 – 9/30/12 

Location: 199 Avenue B, Northwest, Suite 240, Winter Haven, Florida 

Rent: $7,146.43 monthly, which includes a pro rata share of common area 
expenses and certain utilities 

Description: 3760 square feet which consists of a portion of Condominium Unit 2-1 and 
a portion of Suite 240, with right to use common elements (break room 
and business center).  Space contains office furniture, media equipment 
and Star Wars figures. 

Use: Business accelerator program and administrative offices where faculty, 
staff and students can work and engage with third party entities and 
businesses in developing technology and other business activities.  

Assignment: Permitted with prior written consent of Lessor. 

Alterations: Material alterations require prior written consent of Lessor and Lessor to 
inform Tenant at that time whether such alterations must be removed 
upon termination of the lease.  

Termination: Lease terminates at end of term without the necessity of notice from either 
Tenant or Lessor.  Any holding over after the lease expires for more than 
30 days with the Lessor’s consent shall be construed as a month-to-month 
tenancy and Tenant shall pay 125% of the rental amount.  There is no 
provision for early termination by Lessee. 

Notices: Via certified mail or nationally recognized delivery service to 

 The 6/10 Corporation, Carl J. Strang, III, President, P.O. Box 7378, Winter 
Haven, Florida 33883-7378   

Amendment: First Amendment dated 4/19/11 increased monthly rent to $7,303.10 
based on annual adjustment for Utilities and Common Area Expenses; 

 Second Amendment dated 2/8/12 decreased monthly rent to $7,146.43 
based on annual adjustment for Utilities and Common Area Expenses. 

 

 

167



 

 

 

4.     Applied Neuroscience and Cognitive Electrophysiology Laboratory (Brain Lab) 

Lessor: The 6/10 Corporation 

Lease Term: 2/1/11 – 1/31/14, with right to three-year renewal term 

Location: 199 Avenue B, Northwest, Suite 205, Winter Haven, Florida 

Rent: $3,245.83 monthly, plus a pro-rated share (6.39%) of the condominium 
assessments based on the square footage of the leased premises. 

Description: 2015 square feet which consists of a portion of Condominium Unit 2-1, 
with right to use common elements.  Space contains office furniture, office 
equipment, and refrigerator. 

Use: Brain studies testing and research facility and administrative offices.  

Assignment: Permitted with prior written consent of Lessor. 

Alterations: Material alterations require prior written consent of Lessor and Lessor to 
inform Tenant at that time whether such alterations must be removed 
upon termination of the lease.  

Termination: Lease terminates at end of term without the necessity of notice from either 
Tenant or Lessor.  Any holding over after the lease expires for more than 
30 days with the Lessor’s consent shall be construed as a month-to-month 
tenancy and Tenant shall pay 125% of the rental amount. There is no 
provision for early termination by the Lessee. 

Notices: Via certified mail or nationally recognized delivery service to 

 The 6/10 Corporation, Carl J. Strang, III, President, P.O. Box 7378, Winter 
Haven, Florida 33883-7378   

Amendment: First Amendment dated 2/16/11 amended Rent Schedule to reflect 
estimated monthly operating expenses and utilities charges, $337.51 and 
$389.57, respectively for total rent of $3,245.83; 

  

 

168



 

 

 

5.      One Poly Place, 1st Floor 

Lessor: Pilot Bank 

Lease Term: 5/1/11 – 4/30/14, with right to renew for an additional two one-year 
terms.   

Location: 439 South Florida Avenue, Suite 100, Lakeland, Florida 

Rent: $5,630.91 monthly, with 3% annual increase.  Rent has been prepaid 
through 12/31/12 by USF and does not include utilities or janitorial 
services. 

Description: 3859 square feet with Lessor to provide the sum of $30 psf for build out 
cost for up to a total of $115,770.  Space contains office furniture and small 
refrigerator.   

Use: Administrative offices.  

Assignment: Permitted with prior written consent of Lessor. 

Alterations: Alterations require prior written consent of Lessor.  

Termination: If Lessee terminates after the first year of the term, Lessor shall refund an 
amount of prepaid rent applicable to the remaining months left on the 
lease term as of the date of termination.  There is no notice provision to 
the Lessor for termination after first year of the lease term.   

Notices: Via registered or certified mail to 

 Aaron Thompson, 2901 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33612   

Amendment: None. 

 

 

 

 

 

169



 

 

 

 

 

6.      One Poly Place, 3rd Floor 

Lessor: Pilot Bank 

Lease Term: 4/1/11 – 3/31/14, with right to renew for an additional two one-year 
terms.   

Location: 439 South Florida Avenue, Suite 300, Lakeland, Florida 

Rent: $11,458.33 monthly, with 3% annual increase.  Rent has been prepaid for 
full three year term per USF and includes utilities and janitorial services. 

Description: 10,000 square feet with Lessor to provide the sum of $30 psf for build out 
cost for up to a total of $115,770.   Space contains office furniture, white 
board, patio furniture.   

Use: Administrative offices.  

Assignment: Permitted with prior written consent of Lessor.  Note: this lease contains 
language that continues to hold Lessee liable notwithstanding any 
sublease or assignment.   

Alterations: Alterations require prior written consent of Lessor.  

Termination: If Lessee terminates after the first year of the term, Lessor shall refund an 
amount of prepaid rent applicable to the remaining months left on the 
lease term as of the date of termination.  No notice provision for 
termination after first year of the lease term.   

Notices: Via registered or certified mail to 

 Karen Smith, VP, Pilot Building at Lakeland, LLC, 1897 Preston White 
Drive #105, Reston, Virginia, 20191 

Amendment: None. 

 

 

170



 

7.      Wauchula Lease 

Lessor: Wauchula Lodge #17 F&AM 

Lease Term: 2/1/10 – 1/31/11, with right to renew for an additional one-year term.  
Parties may negotiate subsequent renewal if Lessee is in good standing 
after leasing premises for 24 months.     

Location: 116 Main Street West, Wauchula, Florida 

Rent: $12,000 annually, payable in $1000 monthly installments. 

Description: Approximately 2400 square feet on south side ground floor of Lessor’s 
Lodge building.  Space contains office furniture and refrigerator.    

Use: Learning Center.  

Assignment: Permitted with prior written consent of Lessor.  

Alterations: Alterations require prior written consent of Lessor and all permanent 
improvements become property of Lessor.  

Termination: No provision for early termination.   

Notices: Via mail to 

 Wauchula Lodge #17 F & AM, P. O. Box 1708, Wauchula, Florida 33873 

Amendment: First Amendment dated 1/21/10 to renew lease on same terms and 
conditions for one-year term beginning 2/1/11 and ending 1/31/12. 

 Second Amendment dated 1/13/11 to renew lease on same terms and 
conditions for one-year term beginning 2/1/12 and ending 1/31/13. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

171



8.      Interstate Commerce Park (CTI Lab) 

Lessor: BecKryger Capital Partners, LLLP/Interstate Commerce Park One LLC 

Lease Term: 2/1/10 – 1/31/15   

Location: 4100 South Frontage Road, Building 100, Suite 102, Lakeland, Florida 

Rent: Current Base Rent of $148,706 annually, payable in $14,176.25 monthly 
installments.  In addition to Base Rent, Lessee pays a pro-rata share of 
Lessor’s expenses for CAM expenses (operation and maintenance costs), 
insurance and property taxes.   

Description:    Approximately 13,139 square feet  

Use: Housed College of Technology and Innovation. 

Assignment: Permitted with prior written consent of Lessor and payment of $500 
administrative fee.  Lessor has 30 days to determine whether to consent to 
assignment.  Note: this lease contains language that continues to hold 
Lessee liable notwithstanding any sublease or assignment.   

Alterations: Alterations require prior written consent of Lessor and become property 
of the Lessor, except Lessor can require Lessee to remove alterations and 
repair of Premises at end of lease term.   

Termination: Lessee can terminate upon 6 months notice if a state or university-owned 
building becomes available.   

Notices: Via certified mail, hand delivery, or courier service to 

 BecKryger Capital Partners, LLLP, 4100 South Frontage Rd., Building 100, 
Suite 101, Lakeland, Florida 33815 

Amendment: 1st Amendment dated 10/14/10 to lease additional 4741 square feet for an 
additional annual rent of $71,115, or $5,926.25 monthly (included in 
Current Base Rent calculation above). 

 2nd Amendment dated 11/9/10 to lease additional 1557 square feet for an 
additional monthly rent of $1,946.25 (included in Current Base Rent 
calculation above). 

172



1 

 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT, 
dated and effective as of April 20, 2012 (the “Effective Date”), between The University of South 
Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate, acting for the University of South Florida 
and its colleges and campuses, including the former University of South Florida Polytechnic 
(collectively, “USF”), having its principal office at 4202 E. Fowler Avenue, CGS 401, Tampa, 
Florida 33620 and The Florida Polytechnic University Board of Trustees, a public body 
corporate, created pursuant to Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida (the “Act”), whose mailing 
address is c/o Board of Governors, 325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1614, Tallahassee, FL 32399-
0400 (“Florida Polytechnic”). 

Pursuant to the Act, USF is required to transfer to Florida Polytechnic USF's assets and 
liabilities which relate to the former USF Polytechnic Lakeland campus, with the intended 
transfer date of April 20, 2012.  USF and Florida Polytechnic have agreed to the assignment and 
assumption of those assets and liabilities and intend to effectuate the transfer and assumption 
through this Agreement, and a Deed, a Bill of Sale, an Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity 
Agreement related to contractual obligations and certain other transfer documents, all dated as of 
the date of this Agreement (collectively, the “Assignment Documents”).  The Parties wish to 
enter into this Agreement to evidence the transfer as of the Effective Date of all leasehold rights 
and obligations that relate to the USF Polytechnic campus, including, without limitation, those 
rights and obligations more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto (the “Assigned Leases”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, under and pursuant to the terms of the Act, USF and Florida 
Polytechnic hereby agree as follows: 

1. Assignment. Pursuant to the Act and in consideration of the assumption and 
indemnity set forth below, USF hereby assigns its entire rights, title and interest under and in 
respect of the Assigned Leases, without representation or warranty of title or any other matters of 
any kind whatsoever.  To the extent there are any landlord or lessor consents required for the 
transfer and assignment of the Assigned Leases that have not been heretofore obtained, USF 
agrees to cooperate with Florida Polytechnic, at Florida Polytechnic's cost, in obtaining such 
consents, provided that USF be fully released from its obligations thereunder.   

2. Assumption. In consideration of such assignment, Florida Polytechnic hereby 
assumes and agrees to pay, perform and discharge, in accordance with all existing legal, 
contractual and other requirements, and in a prompt and timely manner, all of the obligations of 
USF under and in respect of the Assigned Leases, whether arising prior to or after the date 
hereof. 

3. Indemnification.  To the full extent permitted by law, Florida Polytechnic agrees 
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless USF (and, as applicable, its or their respective trustees, 
directors, officers, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns) from and against all claims, 
loss, liabilities, damages, deficiencies, judgments, assessments, fines, settlements, costs or 
expenses (including interest, penalties and fees, reasonable expenses and disbursements of 
attorneys, experts, personnel and consultants incurred by the indemnified party in any action or 

173



2 

proceeding between the indemnifying party and the indemnified party or between the 
indemnified party and any third party, or otherwise) based upon, arising out of or otherwise in 
respect of the Assigned Leases, including, without limitation, the failure by Florida Polytechnic 
to timely and completely satisfy, pay or perform any obligation under the Assigned Leases; 
provided, however, that this indemnity shall not include any act of negligence or tort liability of 
or attributable to USF accruing on or prior to the date hereof.  

4. Continued Funding Agreement.  The parties recognize that this Assignment 
precedes the transfer by USF to FPU of all residual assets held by USF related to the former USF 
Polytechnic Lakeland campus, including cash balances with respect thereto, which final transfer 
is expected to occur on or about September 30, 2012 (the “Closing Date”).  USF agrees to 
continue paying the rental payments and other costs related to the Assigned Leases until the 
earlier of the Closing Date or October 15, 2012, and FPU agrees to reimburse USF for all such 
expenses on the Closing Date. 

5. Third Party Beneficiaries. Each landlord or lessor that is party to any of the 
Assigned Leases is hereby made an express third party beneficiary of Florida Polytechnic’s 
agreement to assume and perform the obligations of USF thereunder as contemplated in 
paragraph 2 hereof, and is authorized to rely on this paragraph in providing any consent to the 
assignment of such Assigned Leases. 

6. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Successors in Interest.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and 
Indemnity Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their successors and assigns and shall 
inure to the benefit of the parties and respective successors and assigns.   

(b) Captions.  Titles and captions of or in this Lease Assignment, Assumption 
and Indemnity Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in 
no way affect the scope or intent of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement. 

(c) Further Assurance.  USF agrees to cooperate fully with Florida 
Polytechnic in connection with the transfer of the Assigned Leases as contemplated hereby, to 
cooperate with Florida Polytechnic in obtaining any required consents necessary to effectuate 
such transfers, and to execute such further instruments, documents and agreements and to give 
such further written assurances, as may be reasonably requested by Florida Polytechnic to better 
transfer, evidence and reflect the transactions described herein and contemplated by the Act and 
to carry into effect the intents and purposes hereof. 

(d) Controlling Law.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity 
Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida except the laws of that state that would render such choice of laws ineffective. 

(e) Counterparts.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity 
Agreement may be executed in two or more copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, 
and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Lease Assignment, Assumption and 
Indemnity Agreement or its terms to produce or account for more than one of such copies. 

174



3 

7. Effective Date.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement 
shall become effective and may be relied upon by the parties hereto as of the Effective Date.  
  

175



4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized officers of the parties hereto have 
signed, sealed and delivered this Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 

      
WITNESSES: 

_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     
 
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     

THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
BY:        
NAME:         
AS ITS        
 

 
 
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     
 
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     

 
 
THE FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC 
UNIVERSITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
BY:        
NAME:         
AS ITS        
 

 
 
 
 

[Signature Page to Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement] 

 
 
 
 
 

176



 

A-1 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
ASSIGNED LEASES 

 

1. “BRAIN LAB” - Lease between 6/10 Corporation and The University of South 
Florida Board of Trustees, acting for the University of South Florida and USF Polytechnic 
dated October 25, 2010, relating to property at 199 Avenue B, NW, Suite 205, Winter 
Haven, Florida, as amended by the First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated as of 
February 16, 2011, and the Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated as of February 8, 
2012.  

2. “BLUE SKY EAST” - (A) Commercial Lease Agreement between 6/10 Corporation 
and The University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for University of South 
Florida and USF Polytechnic, dated as of September 1, 2009, relating to property located at 
199 Avenue B, NW, Suite 240, Winter Haven, Florida, as amended by the First Amendment 
to Lease Agreement dated as of April 19, 2011, and the Second Amendment to Lease 
Agreement dated as of February 8, 2012; and (B) Commercial Lease Agreement between 
6/10 Corporation and The University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for 
University of South Florida and USF Polytechnic, dated as of February 2, 2010, relating to 
property located at 199 Avenue B, NW, Suite 240, Winter Haven, Florida, as amended by 
the First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated as of April 19, 2011, and the Second 
Amendment to Lease Agreement dated as of February 8, 2012    

3. “BLUE SKY WEST” - Lease Agreement between MarcoBay Properties, Inc. and 
The University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for and on behalf of USF 
Polytechnic dated as of August 11, 2009, with respect to property located at 116 S. 
Kentucky Avenue, Lakeland, Florida. 

4. “WAUCHULA” - Lease Agreement between Wauchula Lodge #17 F&M and 
University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for USF Polytechnic, dated January 
13, 2010, with respect to property located at 116 Main Street West, Wauchula, Florida, as 
amended by the Amendment No. 1 to Lease Agreement dated as of January 5, 2011, 
Amendment No. 2 to Lease Agreement dated as of December 14, 2011, and Purchase Order 
No. 8000002889 dated July 26, 2012 for lease extension. 

5. “PILOT BANK- 1st FLOOR,” - Lease Agreement between Pilot Bank and The 
University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for and on behalf of USF System and 
its campuses and colleges including USF Polytechnic dated April 1, 2011, related to 
property located at 439 South Florida Avenue, #100B, Lakeland, Florida. 

 
6. “PILOT - 3RD FLOOR” Lease Agreement between Pilot bank and The University 
of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for and on behalf of USF System and its 
campuses and colleges including USF Polytechnic dated April 1, 2011, related to property 
located at 439 South Florida Avenue, #300, Lakeland, Florida.  
#11278955_v9 

177



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

178



1 

[One Poly Place] 
 

 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT, 
dated and effective as of April 20, 2012 (the “Effective Date”), between The University of South 
Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate, acting for the University of South Florida 
and its colleges and campuses, including the former University of South Florida Polytechnic 
(collectively, “USF”), having its principal office at 4202 E. Fowler Avenue, CGS 401, Tampa, 
Florida 33620 and The Florida Polytechnic University Board of Trustees, a public body 
corporate, created pursuant to Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida (the “Act”), whose mailing 
address is c/o Board of Governors, 325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1614, Tallahassee, FL 32399-
0400 (“Florida Polytechnic”). 

Pursuant to the Act, USF is required to transfer to Florida Polytechnic USF's assets and 
liabilities which relate to the former USF Polytechnic Lakeland campus, with the intended 
transfer date to be effective as of April 20, 2012.  USF and Florida Polytechnic have targeted 
September 30, 2012 as the date to effectuate that transfer, but in the interim wish to effectuate 
the current transfer the leases, and associated obligations, listed on Exhibit A hereto 
(collectively, the “Assigned Lease”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, under and pursuant to the terms of the Act, USF and Florida 
Polytechnic hereby agree as follows: 

1. Assignment. Pursuant to the Act and in consideration of the assumption and 
indemnity set forth below, USF hereby assigns its entire rights, title and interest under and in 
respect of the Assigned Lease, without representation or warranty of title or any other matters of 
any kind whatsoever.  To the extent there are landlord or lessor consents required for the transfer 
and assignment of the Assigned Lease that have not been heretofore obtained, USF agrees to 
cooperate with Florida Polytechnic, at Florida Polytechnic's cost, in obtaining such consents, 
provided that USF be fully released from its obligations thereunder.   

2. Assumption. In consideration of such assignment, Florida Polytechnic hereby 
assumes and agrees to pay, perform and discharge, in accordance with all existing legal, 
contractual and other requirements, and in a prompt and timely manner, all of the obligations of 
USF under and in respect of the Assigned Lease, whether arising prior to or after the date hereof. 

3. Indemnification.  To the full extent permitted by law, Florida Polytechnic agrees 
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless USF (and, as applicable, its or their respective trustees, 
directors, officers, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns) from and against all claims, 
loss, liabilities, damages, deficiencies, judgments, assessments, fines, settlements, costs or 
expenses (including interest, penalties and fees, reasonable expenses and disbursements of 
attorneys, experts, personnel and consultants incurred by the indemnified party in any action or 
proceeding between the indemnifying party and the indemnified party or between the 
indemnified party and any third party, or otherwise) based upon, arising out of or otherwise in 
respect of the Assigned Lease, including, without limitation, the failure by Florida Polytechnic to 

179



2 

timely and completely satisfy, pay or perform any obligation under the Assigned Lease; 
provided, however, that this indemnity shall not include any act of negligence or tort liability of 
or attributable to USF accruing on or prior to the date hereof.  

4. Continued Funding Agreement.  The parties recognize that this Assignment 
precedes the transfer by USF to FPU of all residual assets held by USF related to the former USF 
Polytechnic Lakeland campus, including cash balances with respect thereto, which final transfer 
is expected to occur on or about September 30, 2012 (the “Closing Date”).  USF agrees to 
continue paying the rental payments and other costs related to the Assigned Lease until the 
earlier of the Closing Date or October 15, 2012, and FPU agrees to reimburse USF for all such 
expenses on the Closing Date. 

5. Third Party Beneficiaries. The landlord or lessor that is party to the Assigned 
Lease is hereby made an express third party beneficiary of Florida Polytechnic’s agreement to 
assume and perform the obligations of USF thereunder as contemplated in paragraph 2 hereof, 
and is authorized to rely on this paragraph in providing any consent to the assignment of such 
Assigned Lease. 

6. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Successors in Interest.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and 
Indemnity Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their successors and assigns and shall 
inure to the benefit of the parties and respective successors and assigns.   

(b) Captions.  Titles and captions of or in this Lease Assignment, Assumption 
and Indemnity Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in 
no way affect the scope or intent of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement. 

(c) Further Assurance.  USF agrees to cooperate fully with Florida 
Polytechnic in connection with the transfer of the Assigned Lease as contemplated hereby, to 
cooperate with Florida Polytechnic in obtaining any required consents necessary to effectuate 
such transfers, and to execute such further instruments, documents and agreements and to give 
such further written assurances, as may be reasonably requested by Florida Polytechnic to better 
transfer, evidence and reflect the transactions described herein and contemplated by the Act and 
to carry into effect the intents and purposes hereof. 

(d) Controlling Law.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity 
Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida except the laws of that state that would render such choice of laws ineffective. 

(e) Counterparts.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity 
Agreement may be executed in two or more copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, 
and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Lease Assignment, Assumption and 
Indemnity Agreement or its terms to produce or account for more than one of such copies. 

7. Effective Date.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement 
shall become effective and may be relied upon by the parties hereto as of the Effective Date. 
  

180



3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized officers of the parties hereto have 
signed, sealed and delivered this Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 

      
WITNESSES: 

_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     
 
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     

THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
BY:        
NAME:         
AS ITS        
 

 
 
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     
 
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     

 
 
THE FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC 
UNIVERSITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
BY:        
NAME:         
AS ITS        
 

 
 
 
 

[Signature Page to Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement- One Poly Place] 

 
 
 
 
 

181



 

A-1 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
ASSIGNED LEASE 

 

1. “PILOT BANK- 1st FLOOR,” - Lease Agreement between Pilot Bank and The 
University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for and on behalf of USF System and 
its campuses and colleges including USF Polytechnic dated April 1, 2011, related to 
property located at 439 South Florida Avenue, #100B, Lakeland, Florida. 

 
2. “PILOT - 3RD FLOOR” Lease Agreement between Pilot bank and The University 
of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for and on behalf of USF System and its 
campuses and colleges including USF Polytechnic dated April 1, 2011, related to property 
located at 439 South Florida Avenue, #300, Lakeland, Florida.  
 
#11468063_v4 

182



FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 5, 2012 
 
 

SUBJECT: Update, Construction Report 
 
 

PROPOSED BOARD ACTION 
 

For information 
 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Not applicable 
 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Mr. Pete Karamitsanis, President and Director, Lighthouse Advisors, Inc., will give a 
report on the construction work to date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Documentation Included: None 
 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Mr. Pete Karamitsanis, President & Director, 
 Lighthouse Advisors, Inc. 

183



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

184



   

FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 5, 2012 
 

SUBJECT: Interim Assignment, and Assumption of the Consultant Retention 
Agreement entered into March 9, 2009, between the University of South 
Florida and Lighthouse Advisors, Inc., as amended.  

 
 

PROPOSED BOARD  ACTION  
 

Approve interim assignment of the above referenced contract, as amended, from USF to 
the Florida Polytechnic University, effective immediately upon execution.  

 
AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 

 
Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution; Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida; Board of 
Governors Regulation 1.001 

 
 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Lighthouse Advisors, Inc. was selected to provide owners representation services to 
USF for USF Project No. 555, which is Building 1 of the new Polytechnic campus. This 
agreement “the Agreement” was been extended through January 31, 2013 via 
amendment dated June 6, 2012.  Currently, Lighthouse Advisors, Inc. receives $17,000 
per month to serve as the owners representative. Both USF and Board of Governors 
staff have identified this contract as critical to the ongoing construction of Poly Building 
Number 1. The primary contact assigned to this project by Lighthouse Advisors is Mr. 
Pete Karamitsanis.  
 
Upon assignment, Board of Governors staff will work with Lighthouse Advisors to 
draft an amended Agreement to modify the notice provisions, and clarify that if Mr. 
Karamitsanis is at some point no longer the primary contact assigned, the contract shall 
terminate effective and other sections as may be necessary. Until such time as an 
executive administrator is selected by the Board of Trustees, the Poly Board Chair or 
designee will be the Owner for administrative purposes of the Agreement.       
 
Supporting Documentation Included: 1. Amended Consultation Retention 
     Agreement dated June 6, 2012 
      2. Interim Assignment, Assumption and 
          Indemnity Agreement 
       
Facilitators/Presenters:   Chris Kinsley 

185



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

186



187



188



189



190



191



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

192



193



194



195



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

196



1 

[PK Contract Only] 
 

ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 

THIS ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT, dated and 
effective as of April 20, 2012 (the “Effective Date”), between The University of South Florida 
Board of Trustees, a public body corporate, acting for the University of South Florida and its 
colleges and campuses, including the former University of South Florida Polytechnic 
(collectively, “USF”), having its principal office at 4202 E. Fowler Avenue, CGS 401, Tampa, 
Florida 33620 and The Florida Polytechnic University Board of Trustees, a public body 
corporate, created pursuant to Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida (the “Act”), whose mailing 
address is c/o Board of Governors, 325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1614, Tallahassee, FL 32399-
0400 (“Florida Polytechnic”). 

Pursuant to the Act, USF is required to transfer to Florida Polytechnic USF's assets and 
liabilities which relate to the former USF Polytechnic Lakeland campus, with the intended 
transfer date to be effective as of July 1, 2012.  USF and Florida Polytechnic have targeted 
September 30, 2012 as the date (the “Complete Transfer Date”) to effectuate that transfer 
(subject to the retention of some assets for teach out purposes), but in the interim wish to 
effectuate the current transfer the contract and associated obligations, listed on Exhibit A hereto 
(collectively, the “Assignment Documents”).   

NOW, THEREFORE, under and pursuant to the terms of the Act, USF and Florida 
Polytechnic hereby agree as follows: 

1. Assignments.  

(a) Pursuant to the Act and in consideration of the assumption and indemnity set forth 
below, USF hereby assigns to Florida Polytechnic, on and effective as of the Effective Date, its 
entire rights, title and interest in and to the Assignment Documents, without representation or 
warranty of any kind whatsoever.   

(b) To the extent governmental or third party consents or approvals are required for 
the transfer and assignment of the contracts listed on Exhibit A, USF agrees to cooperate with 
Florida Polytechnic, at Florida Polytechnic's cost, in obtaining such consents, provided that USF 
be fully released from its obligations thereunder.  No assurances can be given that such approvals 
or consents can or will be obtained. 

2. Assumption; Cost Reimbursement.  

(a) In consideration of such assignments, Florida Polytechnic hereby assumes and 
agrees to pay, perform and discharge, in accordance with all existing legal, contractual and other 
requirements, and in a prompt and timely manner, all of the obligations of USF under and in 
respect of the Assignment Documents, whether arising prior to or after the effective date of 
transfer.  The assumptions contemplated in this section shall be effective on the Effective Date, 
whether or not the consents or approvals are obtained. 

(b) To the extent USF has incurred costs in the performance of its obligations under 
or in respect of the Assignment Documents between July 1, 2012 and the Effective  Date, 
following the Complete Transfer Date, Florida Polytechnic will promptly reimburse USF for all 
such costs so incurred.   

197



2 

3. Indemnification.  To the full extent permitted by law, Florida Polytechnic agrees 
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless USF (and, as applicable, its or their respective trustees, 
directors, officers, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns) from and against all claims, 
loss, liabilities, damages, deficiencies, judgments, assessments, fines, settlements, costs or 
expenses (including interest, penalties and fees, reasonable expenses and disbursements of 
attorneys, experts, personnel and consultants incurred by the indemnified party in any action or 
proceeding between the indemnifying party and the indemnified party or between the 
indemnified party and any third party, or otherwise) based upon, arising out of or otherwise in 
respect of the Assignment Documents, including, without limitation, the failure by Florida 
Polytechnic to timely and completely satisfy, pay or perform any obligation under the 
Assignment Documents; provided however, that this indemnity shall not include any act of 
negligence or tort liability of or attributable to USF accruing on or prior to the date hereof.  

4. Third Party Beneficiaries. Each third party that is a contract party to any 
Assignment Document is hereby made an express third party beneficiary of Florida 
Polytechnic’s agreement to assume and perform the obligations of USF thereunder as 
contemplated in paragraph 2 hereof, and is authorized to rely on this paragraph in providing any 
consent to the assignment of such Assignment Documents.  

5. Continued Funding Agreement.  The parties recognize that this Assignment 
precedes the transfer by USF to FPU of all residual assets held by USF related to the former USF 
Polytechnic Lakeland campus, including cash balances with respect thereto, which final transfer 
is expected to occur on or about September 30, 2012 (the “Closing Date”).  USF agrees to 
continue paying the amounts due under the Assigned Contract until the earlier of the Closing 
Date or October 15, 2012, and FPU agrees to reimburse USF for all such expenses on the 
Closing Date. 

6. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Successors in Interest.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement 
shall be binding upon the parties and their successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of 
the parties and respective successors and assigns.   

(b) Captions.  Titles and captions of or in this Assignment, Assumption and 
Indemnity Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no 
way affect the scope or intent of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement. 

(c) Further Assurance.  USF agrees to cooperate fully with Florida Polytechnic in 
connection with the transfer of the Assignment Documents as contemplated hereby, to cooperate 
with Florida Polytechnic in obtaining any required consents necessary to effectuate such 
transfers, and to execute such further instruments, documents and agreements and to give such 
further written assurances, as may be reasonably requested by Florida Polytechnic to better 
transfer, evidence and reflect the transactions described herein and contemplated by the Act and 
to carry into effect the intents and purposes hereof. 

(d) Controlling Law.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall 
be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida 
except the laws of that state that would render such choice of laws ineffective. 

(e) Counterparts.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement may be 
executed in two or more copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be 

198



3 

necessary in making proof of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement or its 
terms to produce or account for more than one of such copies. 

7. Effective Date.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall 
become effective and may be relied upon by the parties hereto as of the Effective Date.

199



4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized officers of the parties hereto have signed, 
sealed and delivered this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement as of the day and 
year first written above. 

      
WITNESSES: 

_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     

THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
BY:        
NAME:         
AS ITS        
 

 
 
_____________________________________ 
Print Name:     
_____________________________________
  
Print Name:     

 
THE FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC 
UNIVERSITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
BY:        
NAME:         
AS ITS        
 

 
 
 

[Signature Page to Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement - PK Only] 

 
 
 
 

200



A-1 

EXHIBIT A  

ASSIGNMENT DOCUMENTS 

Contracts.  

(1) Construction Consultant.  Lighthouse Advisors Inc. Contract for Fiscal 
Year 2012/2013 - Owner's Rep Consultant Contract dated April 1, 2009 and Owners Rep 
Consultant Contract dated March 9, 2009, including various amendments dated July 1, 2010 and 
June 2, 2011, and amended to extend contract from July 1, 2012 through July 31, 2012. 

(2) Consultant Retention Agreement.  The Consultant Retention Agreement 
between Lighthouse Advisors Inc. and the University of South Florida Board of Trustees dated 
June 6, 2012. 

 
#11468927_v3 

201



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

202



 FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 September 5, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: Delegation of Authority to Transition Committee 
 
 
 PROPOSED BOARD ACTION   
 
Consider delegation of authority to Transition Committee to approve and execute 
contracts and documents related to transfer of assets and liabilities from the University 
of South Florida and for initial operations of Florida Polytechnic University 

 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Chapter 2012-129, Laws of Florida; Board of Governors Regulation 1.001 
 
 
 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
In order to effectuate the transfer of assets and liabilities from the University of South 
Florida as required by section 1004.345, Florida Statutes, various contracts and other 
documents will need to be executed by the Florida Polytechnic University Board of 
Trustees.  Such documents include, but are not limited to, the assignment of leases, 
construction contracts, software licenses, assignment of donation agreements, and the 
assignment of the educational broadband service license and lease.  In addition, 
documents such as a shared services agreement with the University of Florida will need 
to be executed in order to commence day-to-day operations of the university. 
  
To facilitate the business of the Board, the Board may want to consider delegating 
authority to the Transition Committee members, Chair Gidel and Trustee Wilson, to act 
on its behalf in executing certain contracts and documents, subject to such parameters 
as deemed appropriate by the Board.   
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation Included: None 
 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Don Wilson 

203



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 

204



FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 5, 2012 
 
 

SUBJECT: Discussion, Committee Work 
 
 

PROPOSED BOARD ACTION 
 

For information 
 
 

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
 

Not applicable 
 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Committee names and assigned members are as follows:   
 

(1) Transition Committee – Robert Gidel and Donald Wilson, 
(2) Educational Committee – Dr. Sandra Featherman and Dr. Dick Hallion, 
(3) Financial – Mark Bostick and Scott Hammack, and  
(4) Operations – Kevin Hyman and Frank Martin.   

 
Chair Gidel will discuss the upcoming work of the committees.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Documentation Included: None 
 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Chair Robert Gidel 

205


	0101 Fl_Poly_BOT_agenda_2012_09_05 ml edits
	2.   Approval of Meeting Minutes Chair Gidel

	0102 2012_09_05_AI_Minutes
	FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION


	0103 2012_08_01_Board_of_Trustees_minutes
	0104 2012_08_13_Board_of_Trustees_minutes
	0105 Agenda item - Board Authority
	FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION


	0106 Constitution.docx
	0107 1_001_PowersandDuties_Final_2010_9_16
	0108 - Agenda item - Transition
	FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
	AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION


	0109 FPU Funding Overview_August 2012_draft
	0110 Lakeland Cash Transfer
	0111 LAKELAND CONSTRUCTION UPDATE 8-3-12
	�Florida Polytechnic University Campus/Facility – Funding Sources

	0112 01a - SpecialWarrantyDeed
	0113 01b - Bill of Sale (00044053)
	0114 01c - Bill of Sale Exhibit A Inventory - Non teachout
	0115 01d - Bill of Sale Exhibit B Inventory - Teach Out (00044056)
	0116 LAKELAND CONSTRUCTION UPDATE 6-18-12 2
	��CONSTRUCTION �UPDATE��		���				June 20, 2012
	�What Changed From Our Last Update?
	�Budget
	��Breakdown of Additional Funding Required
	�Funding Sources
	�Budget Breakdown
	Construction Schedule

	0117 01g- FIPR
	0118 Agenda item - Shared Services Agreement
	FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION


	0120 Agenda item - Lease Transfers
	FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION


	0121 Lease Summary_1_page
	0122 Summary of Leases
	0123 Lease Assignment Assumption and Indemnity Agreement  -USF Poly (4)
	1. Assignment. Pursuant to the Act and in consideration of the assumption and indemnity set forth below, USF hereby assigns its entire rights, title and interest under and in respect of the Assigned Leases, without representation or warranty of title ...
	2. Assumption. In consideration of such assignment, Florida Polytechnic hereby assumes and agrees to pay, perform and discharge, in accordance with all existing legal, contractual and other requirements, and in a prompt and timely manner, all of the o...
	3. Indemnification.  To the full extent permitted by law, Florida Polytechnic agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless USF (and, as applicable, its or their respective trustees, directors, officers, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns) ...
	4. Continued Funding Agreement.  The parties recognize that this Assignment precedes the transfer by USF to FPU of all residual assets held by USF related to the former USF Polytechnic Lakeland campus, including cash balances with respect thereto, whi...
	5. Third Party Beneficiaries. Each landlord or lessor that is party to any of the Assigned Leases is hereby made an express third party beneficiary of Florida Polytechnic’s agreement to assume and perform the obligations of USF thereunder as contempla...
	6. Miscellaneous Provisions.
	(a) Successors in Interest.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and respective successors and assigns.
	(b) Captions.  Titles and captions of or in this Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way affect the scope or intent of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity ...
	(c) Further Assurance.  USF agrees to cooperate fully with Florida Polytechnic in connection with the transfer of the Assigned Leases as contemplated hereby, to cooperate with Florida Polytechnic in obtaining any required consents necessary to effectu...
	(d) Controlling Law.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida except the laws of that state that would render such choice of laws ineffe...
	(e) Counterparts.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement may be executed in two or more copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indem...

	7. Effective Date.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall become effective and may be relied upon by the parties hereto as of the Effective Date.
	1. “BRAIN LAB” - Lease between 6/10 Corporation and The University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for the University of South Florida and USF Polytechnic dated October 25, 2010, relating to property at 199 Avenue B, NW, Suite 205, Winter H...
	4. “WAUCHULA” - Lease Agreement between Wauchula Lodge #17 F&M and University of South Florida Board of Trustees, acting for USF Polytechnic, dated January 13, 2010, with respect to property located at 116 Main Street West, Wauchula, Florida, as amend...

	0124 Poly Place Lease Assignment Assumption and Indemnity Agreement  -USF Poly
	1. Assignment. Pursuant to the Act and in consideration of the assumption and indemnity set forth below, USF hereby assigns its entire rights, title and interest under and in respect of the Assigned Lease, without representation or warranty of title o...
	2. Assumption. In consideration of such assignment, Florida Polytechnic hereby assumes and agrees to pay, perform and discharge, in accordance with all existing legal, contractual and other requirements, and in a prompt and timely manner, all of the o...
	3. Indemnification.  To the full extent permitted by law, Florida Polytechnic agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless USF (and, as applicable, its or their respective trustees, directors, officers, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns) ...
	4. Continued Funding Agreement.  The parties recognize that this Assignment precedes the transfer by USF to FPU of all residual assets held by USF related to the former USF Polytechnic Lakeland campus, including cash balances with respect thereto, whi...
	5. Third Party Beneficiaries. The landlord or lessor that is party to the Assigned Lease is hereby made an express third party beneficiary of Florida Polytechnic’s agreement to assume and perform the obligations of USF thereunder as contemplated in pa...
	6. Miscellaneous Provisions.
	(a) Successors in Interest.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and respective successors and assigns.
	(b) Captions.  Titles and captions of or in this Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way affect the scope or intent of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity ...
	(c) Further Assurance.  USF agrees to cooperate fully with Florida Polytechnic in connection with the transfer of the Assigned Lease as contemplated hereby, to cooperate with Florida Polytechnic in obtaining any required consents necessary to effectua...
	(d) Controlling Law.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida except the laws of that state that would render such choice of laws ineffe...
	(e) Counterparts.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement may be executed in two or more copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indem...

	7. Effective Date.  This Lease Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall become effective and may be relied upon by the parties hereto as of the Effective Date.

	0125 Agenda item Construction Update
	0126 6.0 Assignment of LIghthouse Advisors Contract
	0127 6.1 LighthouseAdvisors_2012-2013_Executed
	0128 PK Assignment Assumption and Indemnity Agreement _ USF to Florida Polytechnic
	1. UAssignmentsU.
	(a) Pursuant to the Act and in consideration of the assumption and indemnity set forth below, USF hereby assigns to Florida Polytechnic, on and effective as of the Effective Date, its entire rights, title and interest in and to the Assignment Document...
	(b) To the extent governmental or third party consents or approvals are required for the transfer and assignment of the contracts listed on Exhibit A, USF agrees to cooperate with Florida Polytechnic, at Florida Polytechnic's cost, in obtaining such c...

	2. UAssumption; Cost ReimbursementU.
	(a) In consideration of such assignments, Florida Polytechnic hereby assumes and agrees to pay, perform and discharge, in accordance with all existing legal, contractual and other requirements, and in a prompt and timely manner, all of the obligations...
	(b) To the extent USF has incurred costs in the performance of its obligations under or in respect of the Assignment Documents between July 1, 2012 and the Effective  Date, following the Complete Transfer Date, Florida Polytechnic will promptly reimbu...

	3. UIndemnificationU.  To the full extent permitted by law, Florida Polytechnic agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless USF (and, as applicable, its or their respective trustees, directors, officers, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns...
	4. UThird Party BeneficiariesU. Each third party that is a contract party to any Assignment Document is hereby made an express third party beneficiary of Florida Polytechnic’s agreement to assume and perform the obligations of USF thereunder as contem...
	5. UContinued Funding AgreementU.  The parties recognize that this Assignment precedes the transfer by USF to FPU of all residual assets held by USF related to the former USF Polytechnic Lakeland campus, including cash balances with respect thereto, w...
	6. UMiscellaneous Provisions.
	(a) USuccessors in InterestU.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and respective successors and assigns.
	(b) UCaptionsU.  Titles and captions of or in this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way affect the scope or intent of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agre...
	(c) UFurther AssuranceU.  USF agrees to cooperate fully with Florida Polytechnic in connection with the transfer of the Assignment Documents as contemplated hereby, to cooperate with Florida Polytechnic in obtaining any required consents necessary to ...
	(d) UControlling LawU.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida except the laws of that state that would render such choice of laws ineffective.
	(e) UCounterpartsU.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement may be executed in two or more copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agree...

	7. UEffective DateU.  This Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agreement shall become effective and may be relied upon by the parties hereto as of the Effective Date.
	Contracts.
	(1) Construction Consultant.  Lighthouse Advisors Inc. Contract for Fiscal Year 2012/2013 - Owner's Rep Consultant Contract dated April 1, 2009 and Owners Rep Consultant Contract dated March 9, 2009, including various amendments dated July 1, 2010 and...
	(2) Consultant Retention Agreement.  The Consultant Retention Agreement between Lighthouse Advisors Inc. and the University of South Florida Board of Trustees dated June 6, 2012.


	0129 Agenda item - Delegation of Authority
	FLORIDA POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION


	0130 Agenda item Committee Work



